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Our Mission & Vision
The Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch dedicates itself to the task of raising much needed
money for the RSL’s primary objective of providing support to veterans and their
families when they need help. The Box Hill RSL supports and engages with veterans
from all generations.
The granting of an RSL Sub-Branch Charter carries with it important obligations,
particularly working in support of veterans and raising money for veteran welfare
through the ANZAC and Poppy Appeals. The donating public expects that their
money will be directed, by the Box Hill RSL, to benevolent welfare assistance.

THE OBJECTS FOR WHICH THE BOX HILL
RSL SUB-BRANCH IS ESTABLISHED ARE:
a) Perpetuate the close and kindly ties of
friendship created by the mutual service
in the Australian Defence Forces or in the
forces of nations traditionally allied with
Australia and the recollections associated
with that experience;
b) Maintain a proper standard of dignity
and honour among all past and present
members of the Australian Defence Forces
and set an example of public spirit and
noble-hearted endeavour;
c) Preserve the memory and records of those
who suffered and died for Australia, erect
monuments to their valour, provide them
with suitable burial places, and establish
and preserve, in their honour, the annual
commemoration day known as ANZAC Day;

The Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch
will strive to be the best
RSL in providing welfare
for veterans and their
dependents over the next
100 years. This will be
achieved with continued
profitability in order to
meet veteran and broader
community objectives.

d) The promotion of a social organisation
and Sub-Branch of the Branch composed
of those who are serving or who have served in the Australian Defence Forces,
the various British Commonwealth Defence Forces, Members of Allied Defence
Forces, their dependents and such other persons who from time to time may be
admitted to membership in accordance with these Rules.
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e) T
 o establish, maintain and conduct a Sub-Branch of a non-political and nonsectarian character and to provide, furnish, equip and maintain Sub-Branch
rooms, reading rooms, recreation rooms and refreshment facilities to establish
and maintain facilities for lawful games, sporting facilities and recreation for its
Members for the maintenance and improvement of friendly relationships amongst
the Members and generally to afford to Members and their friends and guests all
the usual privileges, advantages, conveniences and facilities of a Sub-Branch.
f) To provide means of social interaction between persons who are Members of
the League and in particular Members of the Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch and their
friends and guests.
g) To make contributions to any charitable relief benefit commemoration or
memorial fund of any kind whatsoever as the Committee may deem advisable.

History
The Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch originated
in 1919 and received its Charter from
the League January 1, 1920. The first
clubrooms were built in the Eastern
Reserve in Whitehorse Road almost
opposite the present Town Hall in 1920.
It was an eight sided red brick building
in the shape of a field tent affectionately
called “The Rotunda”. Membership was
increasing and by 1950 the Sub-Branch
was looking for larger premises. Upton
House was bought by the Sub-Branch in
1951. Many alterations and restoration
was needed and this was done by RSL
working bees.
In 1962, Upton House was sold to the
Box Hill Hospital. A condition of this sale
was that a grant of land be re-zoned and
given to the RSL in Nelson Road. The
start of the present building was then
built with the money from the sale of
Upton House. The site has continued to be developed over the years with the most
recent being the refurbishment of the Reception and Port Cochére at the entrance.
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President
The 2020 year was
the most challenging
year Box Hill RSL has
ever had to face in its
history.
The year began
normally but by
March 23rd due to
the Coronavirus we
were forced to close
completely.
By June the State
Government allowed
us to re-open for
a period of two weeks with extreme limits on the number of
members allowed in the premises.

2020 will also be remembered as the Centenary Year of Box
Hill RSL and to commemorate the same, a book titled “One
Hundred Years in the Making Box Hill RSL 1920-2020” will be
launched in the first quarter of 2021.
In conclusion, I would like to thank our General Manager, Denis
Fernando, Supervisors, Staff and all of the Committee, for a job
well done, and for the support they have given me in the most
difficult of years.

John Haward
Hon. President

After the short opening period we were again closed until
November.
As you would appreciate, this made it very difficult for us
financially, but with help of some Government Grants and Job
Keeper for most of our staff, we were able to keep our head
above the water.
Even though the Club was closed, our management team was
still working but with reduced hours.
Our Welfare Department, headed by Faye Clark, also continued
to operate providing assistance to our Veteran Members.
Your Committee still held all of their monthly meetings and
Annual General Meeting both conducted via Zoom. This was
certainly a new experience for all of us.
With restrictions on large numbers of people gathering
together, our Remembrance services, (ANZAC Day, Vietnam
Veterans Day and Remembrance Day), were all cancelled.
However, those days were not forgotten and the RSL laid
wreaths at our Cenotaph on each of those days.
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General Manager
The Covid-19 Year at a Glance

senior management team to ensure our club was Covid Safe.

The year the World

Julie Stewart took over the role as the club’s Covid Ambassador

was caught off guard.

ensuring we developed a Covid Plan for all our members and

2020 was the year

staff which made our club safe, thank you Julie. Faye Clark

we would learn to

continued with Welfare services but mainly worked from home

understand that our

assisting our Veterans. We still communicated to members

normal life we take

with Box Hill News, website and electronic mail as we navigated

for granted would

through the State Government Covid-19 restrictions. Let’s

change forever and I

hope for a stable 2021, a vaccine that is safe and works for all

think we are still yet

Australians and normality in our personal and club life.

to realise the impact

Over the lockdown period, Box Hill and Epworth hospitals

Covid-19 had on our
day-to-day life.

utilised our carpark; both hospitals were part of the essential
services required to combat Covid-19 in the immediate area. Les

On March 22 at

Davis and I ensured the hospital staff had a Covid Safe carpark

11.59pm 2020, we

and importantly safety was a priority as many are nurses. The

were instructed to close all operations of the Club by the

management team also assisted by working a roster where we

Victorian State Government along with all clubs, pubs and

would open and close the carpark daily and ensure no other

restaurants in Victoria due to the community transmission of

vehicles were utilising the carpark as the club worked with the

Covid-19 mainly in aged care settings. We remained closed

Covid Safe plan. On occasions when we were permitted, staff

until June where we traded with significant restrictions for

would clean and tidy the club, dust, mop and clean floors and

approximately three weeks. Thereafter Victoria commenced

toilets and were enthusiastically available to help. It was great

State of Disaster and State Emergency protocols which only

to see the BHRSL Committee led by President John Haward

allowed essential services to operate; further restrictions

assisting and motivating staff and each other through a very

including a five-kilometre lockdown and curfew throughout

difficult time.

metropolitan Melbourne were imposed in July, and, as a result,

As you are aware just before Covid-19 restrictions were upon us,

club operations were again closed until November 9, 2020.
The club re-opened for a second time in the year with social
distancing and quota restrictions that are still in place restricting
patronage to the capacity of our liquor licence.

we completed the building works which included, the new Poppy
Wall remembrance area, Reception, Foyer and Port Cochere. All
work was completed with no external funding which placed us
in a secure financial position for a year where we have had no

All in all, we all made it, the Club survived, you, the members,

income stream for some eight months. We were planning on

got through and I’m so grateful that you came rushing back to

replacing carpet throughout the Club in 2020, however, due to

support our wonderful club but what a rollercoaster of a ride we

Covid and finances, we did not proceed, hopefully in 2021 if the

would never want to see again. It has been wonderful to receive

Club returns to normal operation we will revisit.

emails from members, seeing you in person and thanking you
for giving our club life again. Our Bowls and Snooker groups
were keen to head back before the year end following strict
Covid plans and commenced their journey back with great
success; so thanks to both committees for your cooperation at
a difficult time. I must also thank all my management and line
staff who stuck by the club and enthusiastically came in when
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restrictions eased, educated themselves online, worked with the

The Year Ahead

Summary of 2020
Sub-Branch Financials
2020

2021 is an uncertain year, especially for the first six months. Will
we have further lockdowns due to hotel quarantine and contact

2019

tracing issues in Victoria? Will the economy bounce back to
normal? Will we live in a Covid-free community? Will the Covid

Income
operating

$1,976,385

$5,390,215

vaccine be effective and will the community participate? These
and many other questions are the key for all to move forward

Income nonoperating

$39,520

$77,136

Total Income

$2,015,905

$5,467,351

Operating
expenses

($1,764,987)

($4,225,310)

Welfare
expenses

($260,538)

($814,237)

Net Operating
Surplus

($9,620)

$427,804

EBITDAR

$671,673

$2,628,939

including Box Hill RSL.
I will be cautiously but enthusiastically looking ahead, but in
terms of further upgrades or building improvements, we will
place all that on hold until certainty is clearer.

The Federal Government introduced Job Keeper which allowed
us to hold onto most staff and, to date, the scheme continues

By the time you receive this report the retractable awning for
the external Alfresco area would have commenced. Due to
restrictions this area will give the club protected dining, drinking
and smoking area, hopefully a space we can utilise all year round.

In Closing
A huge thank you to everyone for your support, dedication,
commitment and your spirit, you all in some way played a significant
role in getting our wonderful club operational once again.

to assist the club financially. We also received approximately

To my team, staff, Faye Clark, who worked from home most of the

$42K in State Government grants and a further $148K from the

year ensuring our Veteran Welfare program continued, thank you

Victorian RSL Branch due to overpayments to the State Branch

for your commitment hanging in there and supporting myself and

that go back to 2012 - a welcome refund at an important time.

each other.

Thanks to Luke Gilholme, (Manager of Strategy and Innovation),
and David Ridley, (CFO), from Anzac House for assisting us.

Finally, thank you to President John Haward, his Executive team
and the Committee of Box Hill RSL for their unconditional support

We still had several accounts to pay that range from insurance,

and confidence in me and my team. We have an amazing club and

electricity, maintenance and additional leave entitlements

wonderful people supporting each other. Be safe and see you in

to name a few, however a comprehensive audited financial

2021.

summary of mainly expenses throughout 2020 is available in the
annual report for the Sub-Branch accounts. Detailed Patriotic,

Denis Fernando

Agency and Balance Sheet accounts are also available in the

General Manager

annual report. Overall, the Sub-Branch Incorporated had a loss
of approximately $8.3 million in turnover over the Covid year,
however, only an actual loss of ($9,620) which is a pretty good
result for 2020.
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Secretary
2020 has been a year

Our membership comparison figures are taken as at 31st

unlike any other we

December 2019 and 2020.

have experienced
before. The

2020

2019

756

906

Life Subscribers

13

16

unprecedented.

Life Members

10

10

The 2019 AGM was

Second
Members

8

11

Affiliate
Members

1,162

1,282

758

988

7,205

15,012

6

6

9,918

18,231

COVID-19 pandemic
and the restrictions
placed upon us by
the Federal and State
Governments were

finally held via a
Zoom online meeting,
on Sunday November

Service
Members

1, 2020. The delay being due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic

Social Members

and restrictions. John Haward was elected President and Ray

Community

Wall was returned as Secretary to the Executive of the Box Hill
RSL Committee. Committeewoman Judy Coates was re-elected

Honorary

with new nominees Christopher Gray and John Sheehan joining

Total

the Committee.
ANZAC Day 2020 was completely different to any prior years
due to the COVID-19 restrictions. Only a few of the Box Hill RSL
Sub-Branch Committee, representing our Members, were able
to lay a wreath at the Cenotaph in Box Hill Gardens and another
at the Remembrance Wall adjacent to the Club entrance on
Saturday the 25th of April. A further wreath was laid at the Boer

Sadly 70 of our members passed away in 2020.
Our next important function for the year was held on
Wednesday 11th November, Remembrance Day. Again,
restrictions were in place limiting the number of people who
were able to attend the Remembrance Day Service due to

War Memorial situated in Whitehorse Road, Box Hill.

COVID-19 pandemic and restrictions.

On behalf of our Veteran Community, thank-you to all members

Like ANZAC Day, only a few of the Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch

who contributed to the ANZAC Day Appeal. Thanks also to
Appeals Officer Bep Dawes for organising the stock and doing
her best to make the ANZAC Day Appeal a success under very
stringent rules.
This year $12,682 was raised to help our Veterans.

Committee, representing our Members, were able to lay a
wreath at the Cenotaph in Box Hill Gardens and another at
the Remembrance Wall adjacent to the Club entrance on
Remembrance Day. A further wreath was again laid at the Boer
War Memorial situated in Whitehorse Road, Box Hill.
Thanks to Appeals Officer Bep Dawes for organising the stock,
contacting and delivering stock to Schools, Aged Care facilities
and businesses who were keen to give their support. The sale of
Remembrance Day poppies and tokens raised $16,507.70 for the
welfare of our veteran members and their families. THANK YOU.
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Two other annual events, the “Volunteer of the Year” and the
Children’s Christmas Party were unable to be conducted due
again to the COVID-19 pandemic and restrictions.
Dr. Steven Cooke, (Deakin University), has completed the
History of Box Hill RSL which celebrates 100 years of service in
2020. We are looking forward to seeing the completed book in
February 2021. The book will be launched during 2021.
To Faye Clark, and her band of willing volunteers, thank you for
your input and care of our many members. As you read Faye’s
report you will appreciate just how much effort she puts into
your RSL.
I am extremely grateful to the Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Executive,
Committee, General Manager, Staff and Volunteers who have
helped me personally with the Secretary position this year.
I hope 2021 will be a much better year for us all.

Ray Wall
Hon. Secretary
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Treasurer
2020 the year of the
COVID-19 Virus was
a year where we had
to close our doors for
approximately eight
months. Our income
dropped from $5.5M
last year to $2M this
year. Most of our staff
were paid with the help
of Job Keeper. Only
$196,000 rent was
paid into our Patriotic
account which will
affect our Stage 3 project building extensions into the future. Welfare

Salaries and Wages
Rent

$1,282,423
196,138

Welfare and Donations

260,538

Depreciation

306,449

Repairs and Maintenance

88,417

Operational Support to
ANZAC House

190,232

Gas and Electricity

144,097

Cleaning

63,487

Many functions had to be cancelled including ANZAC Day and

Payroll Tax

66,927

Remembrance Day. Both the State and Federal Government Bodies

Security Costs

36,901

Insurance

44,315

expenses were well down on last year by approximately $554,000.

helped with an overall amount of approximately $1.754M. This has
helped the RSL with our staff wages and expenses such as electricity,
insurance, repairs and maintenance while the Club was closed.
All creditors accounts for 2020 are paid and we had a small loss
of ($9,620).

Net Operating Income
Gaming
Sundry Items
Bar Trading
Catering
Subscriptions
Interest
Received
Totals
Percentage of
staff costs to
revenue
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Major Expenses include:

Appeals
Anzac Day

$12,682

Remembrance Day

$16,508

Appeal Totals

$29,190

2020

2019

$897,516

$3,740,204

702,920

469,135

in helping with Veteran members needing urgent assistance.

194,497

581,477

Committee.

93,919

465,891

108,242

146,451

18,811

64,193

$2,015,905

$5,467,351

38.30%

28.5%

All Appeal money is sent direct to ANZAC House Victoria. We
can then request up to a maximum of 50% to assist our RSL
All monies are approved by our Welfare Manager and full
I must congratulate our Appeals officer, Bep Dawes and her
volunteers for their diligent way in co-ordinating this very
difficult job during the COVID-19 lockdown. Funds raised were
down approximately $68,000 on last year. Funds raised were
mainly from our members, aged care facilities, businesses and
schools in the area.

Capital Expenditure Items
Included

Conclusion
All Community Benefits made by the Box Hill RSL are listed on
the inside back cover of this report.

Jensen Data Till System

$11,430

Utopia TITO/Note
Breaker

23,870

2 x Original Paintings
Synthetic Polymer

12,000

Printer for WelfareKyocera

We again thank the Gordon Kersey fund for assisting us with
a donation of approximately $900,000 some years ago. It has
helped the Sub-Branch in many ways over many years.
I must thank our General Manager, Denis Fernando, for his
untiring devotion to the RSL and his excellent leadership of all
staff and his extra responsibilities with the Building Committee

1,273

RSL Debt and Future
Improvements

projects. I also thank our administrative and computer experts,
Kristina Freeman and Julie Stewart who pay the wages and
invoices plus the many administrative duties and Government
returns all in a very timely manner. They have been with us for
many years and are an integral part of the RSL.

We are still debt free with all bank loans.

Major Arthur Merryweather RFD.ED.Retd.

Stage 2, Port Cochere and Foyer were completed this year at a

Honorary Treasurer

cost of $4.2M.
Stage 3 has been delayed due to COVID-19. Committee has still
to decide what action to take.

Patriotic Fund
This fund is the true owner of Box Hill RSL’s land, buildings and
all other fixed assets. It is also responsible for all external debt
relating to those assets. The Sub-Branch, the user of the fixed
assets, pays a commercial rent each month to our Patriotic
Fund. This allows us to pay for any borrowings we may have, or
into the future. This includes new buildings and the purchase
of necessary furniture and fittings permanently attached to our
buildings that the Club may require from time to time.
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Box Hill RSL Sub Branch Inc

Welfare Report

I am certainly happy to see the end of 2020 where, because of COVID-19, I worked from home for most of the year. It certainly
posed a challenge, but the Welfare Department continued to successfully provide a wide range of services to our members.
Amazingly our volunteers were also able to clock up some significant hours, this is particularly true of our Knitting Group and I
thank Laura Yodgee, a member of this group, who prepared the following special report on this group.

KNITTING GROUP
2020 will go down in history as a strange and unique experience

During 2020 we produced over 300 items and volunteered

for most of us. It was a challenge for community-based groups

almost 4,000 hours. We also worked on a special project for

such as the RSL with the lockdowns preventing much of the work

our RSL members in aged care. I’m sure you’ll agree that that is

and activities that our volunteers would normally undertake. For

quite an achievement. I am always impressed and amazed by the

the Box Hill RSL Knitting Group it presented only minor challenges

output and skill shown by our small group of ladies. They are a

like running out of yarn and where to store all the items we were

joy to be a part of.

creating. Unlike most of the volunteers, we were able to carry
on with our mandate to make
beautiful and useful items for our
various charities. Our items go to
Cottage by the Sea, Eastern Health
and to KOGO (Knit One Give
One). A small number of baby
clothes and blankets have gone to
St. Kilda Mums.
Throughout 2020 our group
kept in touch via phone and with
birthday cards being sent. Our
unity and care for each other
kept us going until we were finally
able to get together for our
annual Christmas lunch at the
beginning of December last year.
Sadly, we lost one of our beloved
long-term members, Bettina
Pollard, who passed away in
November 2020.
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Main photo (L toR): Yvonne Yodgee, Laura Yodgee, Karen Holt, Viti Keys, Hazel Mourney and
Dorothy Conway. Insert images (L to R): Vilma Dodd, Bettina Pollard and Maree Ritchie.

Welfare
REPORT
Please let me share with you a bit about each of our members.
Dorothy Conway
Dorothy, ‘Dot’ to her friends, the leader of our group, is also our
oldest member at 94 years young.

said a word in the first weeks after joining but now, she is our
resident chatterbox. Karen loves knitting and finds it relaxing
unless the cricket is on. She makes lovely, ribbed scarves and
squares for others to make into knee rugs.
Karen is our social secretary and makes sure we don’t miss

Dot was originally from England and has amazing tales of her

anyone’s birthday. She sent birthday cards to members during

earlier life during WW2. Her late husband also served in England

the lockdowns in 2020 too. Karen looks forward to coming

during the war. They arrived in Australia in 1952 and joined their

every week and being able to contribute to other’s wellbeing.

local RSL in Melbourne. They later transferred to the Box Hill
RSL. Dot was introduced to the Day Club and via them to the

Vilma Dodd

Knitting Group. Her specialty is knee rugs and beautiful baby

Vilma joined the RSL as her late husband, Laurie, was in the

clothes and cot blankets. Even though she has moved away from

NSAA. Initially she was asked to help in the library and to assist

the area Dot still comes every week and enjoys the company of

with covering all the books. Once the book covering project was

the ladies.

finished, Faye asked the ladies if they wanted to start a knitting

Viti Keys

group. As such, Vilma was one of our founding members. She
thoroughly enjoys the company of the ladies. Although her health

Viti was invited to join the RSL and the Knitting Group by an

is preventing her from participating at present, she hopes to get

aunt after moving back to Melbourne from the country. Her

back to it one day as she misses us all. And we miss her too.

husband was in National Services. She has always been a knitter.
She finds it an absolute joy to use those knitting skills to make

Maree Ritchie

items for, firstly, her family and friends, but now for charity

Maree joined the RSL through family and friends and

through the RSL.

predominantly through her mother who was a member and

Viti is also a talented cook and preserve maker and we are often
the lucky recipients of her delicious creations.

volunteer. Before joining the Knitting Group, Maree had been a
volunteer visiting members in hospital and those in aged care.
After her mother had passed and Maree had finished rehab post

She loves the social aspect of the group and meeting new

an operation, found she had some time on her hands, so joined

people and was happy to join a supportive group of ladies.

the Knitting Group. It was a sit-down activity and close to her heart

Hazel Mourney

as her mother had been a member of the Knitting Group too. She
loves the social aspect of the group and the warm atmosphere.

Hazel’s late husband, Desmond, was a member of the Air Force.

Having worked in aged care and visited Cottage by the Sea, one of

As they were RSL members, she had read about the Knitting

our charities we donate goods to, Maree finds it heart-warming to

Group in the Scuttlebutt newsletter. She was a spinner and

see the handmade items received as a special gift.

weaver and had a lot of wool at home, so she knitted some
knee rugs and donated them to the Knitting Group. Then she

Bettina Pollard (dec.)

was invited to join by the then group leader Sue Williams. The

Bettina sadly passed away in early November 2020 just

number of hours and the huge number of items that Hazel

before we came out of lockdown. She had been busy knitting

produces is nothing short of incredible. She can take almost any

throughout last year in between illnesses and hospital stays.

yarn and make pretty much anything. She is by far our champion

Her son, Chris, shared these memories with me. Bettina

knitter. Hazel loves the camaraderie of the group and being able

was always community minded. She joined the RSL after her

to contribute to the welfare and comfort of ex-service members

husband passed and was approached to join the Legacy Ladies.

and others in need.

She served as the group’s Social Secretary and twice as the

Karen Holt

President. She was also a member of the Day Club, helping
to organise buses for RSL outings, volunteered as a hospital

Karen’s father was a member and volunteer and encouraged her

and aged care visitor and with the Isolated Persons Lunches.

to join the Knitting Group as they were a lovely lot. She joined

Bettina was an early member of our Knitting Group and had

the Knitting Group for the social aspect. Apparently, she hardly

fond memories of knitting jumpers for penguins who had been
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in an oil slick. She thoroughly enjoyed her time with us. Bettina
acknowledged that the RSL saved her after her husband’s
passing, helping her mental state and giving her a new lease on
life. We miss her and send our love to her friends and family.
Yvonne Yodgee
Yvonne and her late husband had been members of the Box
Hill RSL for many years. Her husband, Ivan, had been a library
volunteer. They had both enjoyed many trips and outings with
the RSL as well as volunteering with mailing out the newsletter.
After his passing, she and her daughter joined the knitting group.
Yvonne spends hours every week knitting away in front of the
afternoon movie. She enjoys meeting up with the ladies every
week and contributing to the beautiful handmade items they
make for charity.

Laura Yodgee
Laura has had a long association with the RSL as part of her
role as first a cadet, then an NCO and an Officer with the Naval
Reserve Cadets (now known as the Australian Naval Cadets).
She spent 17 years with Training Ship Melbourne and was in
the first year of female cadets joining the system and finished
as the unit’s first female Commanding Officer. After her father
passed and looking for a social outlet for her mother, Yvonne,
Laura stuck her head into the library where the Knitting Group
were meeting. Both she and her mother were knitters and Laura
also crochets so the group was a perfect fit. As the youngest
member, she gets to do most of the running around and
entering all their volunteer hours into the database. She also
volunteers with some admin work and other RSL activities.
A special big thank you must go to the above enthusiastic
members of this Knitting Group who volunteered 3,857 hours to
make lots of knitted goods during lockdown in 2020.

Social Groups and Activities
Unlike our Knitting Group, our other social and interest groups

Tuesday of the month at 1pm in Upton 2 and led by Ingrid Nelson.

continued into 2020 but only up until lockdown.

I thank both Sue and Ingrid for the expertise that they share.

TAI CHI

TRIPS

The Tai Chi program continues to be very popular but sadly

Sadly, trips had to be cancelled for 2020 and we have not

was only available during February and March last year. The

planned any for 2021 at this stage.

members are looking forward to continuing this program in 2021
as participants have stated that they feel their mobility, flexibility,
and balance has improved since commencing Tai Chi. This is
important feedback given the age of most of the participants.
Improving balance, mobility, and flexibility can only improve
their personal safety. I would like to thank our instructors Rani
Hughes and Sarah Finlay whose positivity and patience make the
classes so enjoyable.

GENEALOGY
The Genealogy groups also ceased after their March meetings.
The members remain at varying stages in the search for their
family histories and some have traced their family members back
many generations to their ancestral countries. They hope to
continue in 2021 with their respective group. The leader of the
Advance group that meets on the 1st Monday of the month at
1pm in the Library is Sue Archbold. While the Beginners group
(for those who have just begun their searches) meet on the 1st
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MOVIES
Members were only able to enjoy two movies from Ray
Wall’s personal library last year before lockdown. They were
Conspiracy of Faith and Believe in Me. With selections from
action, drama, real-life adaptations, and foreign films, we are all
looking forward to Ray Wall's 2021 selection. Thank you to Ray
for your dedication to this program.

GARDENING GROUP
Our two bowlers Mick Frail and Kevin Moffatt tended to our
garden, especially the area around the Bowling Green and I
thank them very much for their great work.

FRIDAY NIGHT RAFFLE
A fun night where lots of prizes are won. The volunteers who
helped up until lockdown were Mandy Wallace, Bronwen and
David Laughlin.

Welfare
REPORT
Support Programs
Despite lockdown, we
still managed to offer a
comprehensive support

Info/PO Referral to DVA/
HC/P of A/Other 5%
Gardening 22%

Info/Death/Ritual/
Funeral 15%

program and provided
a wide range of services
tailored to support the
independence of our
members, veterans and war
widows in the community.
The following graph shows
where support was given to
the people during 2020.

Newsletter/Birthday/
Admin 9%

General Support/
Counselling/
Financial Aid 9%

Transport/Taxi
Vouchers 7%

Allied Health/Medical
aids/Podiatry 4%

Home/ACF/Hospital/
Rehab/Visits etc. 11%

Appeals/ANZAC
Remembrance 2%
Aged/Veteran/
Care Issues 6%

Groups and Sections
and Volunteers 7%

Projects/Trips/IPP
Lunches/Info Sessions 3%

LAWN MOWING AND GARDENING

MEDICAL AIDS AND ALLIED HEALTH

Our gardening service continued to help our members to remain

To further support the independence of members, we provided

independent and stay in their own home. During 2020, 22 members

members with the necessary equipment needed to remain in

who, for age or health reasons, were no longer able to do their own

their home. Eligible members were also able to receive help with

gardens, had their lawns mowed and/or their gardens tidied.

their podiatry services if they were not eligible for DVA or the

TRANSPORT ASSISTANCE
To further support the independence of members, we provided

CDM Plan. A thank you to our podiatrist, Jasmine Chan, who
provided consultations as well as any required orthotics.

just over 605 taxi vouchers to 47 members. These recipients

HAIRCUTS

who were unable to drive or catch public transport but with our

The free Haircut Program was again offered at the RSL up until

assistance were able, up until lockdown, attend groups here at

lockdown with Kay Cameron doing 199 haircuts for 118 members. I

the RSL, visit their loved ones in hospital or aged care facilities

would again like to thank Kay for her wonderful work.

and even during lockdown attend medical appointments or
rehabilitation not covered by DVA.

GENERAL SUPPORT

Letter of Appreciation:

We provided general, social, emotional, and financial support to

-T
 hank you for the Taxi Vouchers. I used them for my hospital
visits - so much appreciated.

REMEMBERING BIRTHDAYS
In recognition that birthdays are important, Welfare continued to
wish our full members, ‘A Happy Birthday’ and provide birthday
vouchers during lockdown. Birthday vouchers are greatly appreciated
by our members and were honoured after the lockdown finished.
Letter of Appreciation:
-T
 hank you for my Birthday Voucher. I cherish the RSL for the
community service it stands for.

our members in aged care and the community during lockdown,
I was only a phone call away.
Letters of Appreciation:
- Thank you for your continual dedication, what a strange year it
has been.
- All you do is really appreciated.
- Thank you very much for the support you and the RSL have
shown my father in the past and especially in these current
difficult times.
- Many thanks for keeping our RSL going in this difficult year,
better days ahead.
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Support Groups

our list every Monday morning and spent the rest of the week

Support groups during 2020 were available up until lockdown:

visitors were Barbara Kearney OAM, Stephen Eno, Judy Coates,

PROSTATE SUPPORT GROUP
This group meets every 3rd Tuesday of the month at 9:30am in

visiting those in hospital and others in aged care. Our other
Hennie Pasveer, Cheryl and Michael Frail, Paul Fraser, and Pat
Keech. I thank all the visiting team for their dedication to the
sick, aged, and lonely.

Upton 2.

SENIOR MEN’S DISCUSSION GROUP
This group meets the 2nd and 4th Thursdays of the month at
2pm in the Library.

Education &
Community Projects
CUB/SCOUT AND SCHOOL PROGRAM
Our Cub/Scout and School program did not take place during
2020. But our volunteers John Haward and Brian Tateson
are very keen to develop new ways to communicate the RSL
message and explain our military history, as well as the role of
the RSL in the community during 2021 when safe to do so.

LIBRARY

Above: Graeme visiting Alma George during lockdown.

The library is a hidden treasure and a useful resource for people

How wonderful, the following members celebrated their 100th

wanting to research our participation in the World Wars. I thank

birthdays during 2020.

our library volunteers Peter Norman and Sue Stewart who, up
until lockdown, spend their Mondays rearranging and updating
our library system. A job well done!

MEMORABILIA
I thank Brian Tateson who did a superb job of collating and
organising the memorabilia display up until lockdown. (See
Brian’s Memorabilia report)

Erica Campbell

Eric Young

Don McDonald

WEB SITE AND INTERNET ACCESS
Our Web site is www.boxhillrsl.com.au and members were able
to access the internet during their time at the RSL.

Visitation and Support Program
Our visiting program continued up until lockdown to be a
very active one, with volunteers giving support to members in
hospitals, rehabilitation, and aged care facilities. Joan Waters
rang members in hospital on a weekly basis to check on their
wellbeing and update our lists, while Graeme Agnew checked
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GIFTS
Despite lockdown, we still provided our members in aged care
facilities and hospital with gifts at Easter and Christmas. Thank
you to the volunteers who delivered these.

Welfare
REPORT
Pension Advice

Donations

During 2020, Our Pension Advocates, Jolie Magee and

In keeping with our commitment to veteran organisations and

Geoff Smith, only had a few interviews before lockdown,

the needy, grants were given to our sporting sections, ex-service

but throughout the year worked from home and had some

organisations in need and other not-for profit organisations in

successful outcomes including a granted Disability Pension,

the community. See our Community Audit for further details.

an increase in a Disability Pension, a successful War Widows
Pension and successful conditions accepted under MRCA and
DRCA. The Pension Officers were assisted by Administrative
Assistant Neil Brown while we missed our other Administrative
Assistant Garry Hutchinson who was unwell during 2020. I
thank Jolie, Geoff, and Neil for their dedication to our members
and to other veterans and war widows from the community
during what was a difficult time.
Letter of Appreciation:
-T
 hank you for your efforts in getting in touch with DVA. I now have
been issued with a white card and have been offered counselling.

Commemoration
SERVICES FOR AGED CARE FACILITIES
We were not able to provide services at Aged Care Facilities
to commemorate the 2020 ANZAC and Remembrance Days
because of the lockdown.

SERVICES FOR ANZAC DAY AND REMEMBRANCE DAY
For Anzac Day, we commemorated our Service Men and
Women of all Wars with a small service at the Cenotaph in the

Social Activities and Special
Events

Box Hill gardens next door. President John Haward recited

All our Social activities including our IPP, WW2 luncheons, and

wall in front of the RSL and at the Boer War monument in

Kid’s Christmas did not take place during 2020 because of the

Whitehorse Road. Because of lockdown and no crowds allowed,

The Ode; wreaths were laid by John Haward, Brian Tateson
and Judy Coates. The Last Post was played by Box Hill RSL
member John Kelly. Wreaths were then laid at the memorial

lockdown.

Funerals
We lost 70 of our esteemed members during 2020, 43 Service
members and 27 Affiliate members. During 2020 because of
lockdown, Celebrants were not able to attend many funerals to
conduct the RSL Ritual. When not in lockdown, the Celebrants
were Charles Kook, Vic Allen and Lindsay Burke who conducted
four rituals between them, with Peter McPhee and Barrie
Sutton filling in with one each. A big thank you goes to them
as I really appreciate their support. When we are notified of a
member’s death, we arrange the Volunteer Celebrant, write to
the Australian Defence Force Records Department for eulogy
details, put a notice in the Herald Sun, send a bereavement
card and arrange for our contribution to the wake if it is held
here at the RSL. We do a follow-up with the partner to see how
they are managing at home, to offer support and to discuss the
possibilities of a war widow application if applicable.
Letter of Appreciation:
-T
 hank you for thinking of our family during this difficult time.
Your thoughts were sincerely appreciated.
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others commemorated at Dawn on their balconies and at
their front gates, we share a selection of photos of the above
service together with members and staff in a reflection of the
importance of Anzac Day.

Newsletter and
Annual Report Mailouts
The Newsletter is a usually a regular job throughout the year,

For Remembrance Day, again no crowds allowed, we conducted

but in 2020 volunteers helped with two mailouts, the Newsletter

a small Remembrance Day service at the Cenotaph Box Hill

and the Annual Report at the beginning of the year and then

Gardens. Wreaths were laid by President John Haward, Vice

during lockdown staff volunteered to help with this job.

President Brian Tateson and Committee member Judy Coates.
A wreath was also laid at the Remembrance Wall at the RSL
by Chris Gray, Lindsay Burke, Bep Dawes, Brian Tateson, John
Haward, Judy Coates and John Sheehan. Later Judy Coates laid a
wreath at the Boer War Memorial in Whitehorse Road, Box Hill.

I thank the Staff and Volunteers who did help on the day of
the mailouts, they were: Denis Fernando our General Manager,
Arthur Merryweather our Treasurer, John Haward our President,
Wei Wei Dai, Dylan Cross, Les Davis, Kristina Freeman, Julie
Stewart our staff, Neil Brown, Paul Aitkenhead, Lindsay Burke,
Brenda Burr, Judy Coates, Heather Coombes, Bep Dawes,
Cheryl Frail, Helen Harrington, Max Hayes, Hennie Pasveer, Phil
Peterson, Glenys and Anthony Pickup, Bob Yendall, Jan Nickell,
Josephine Lessels our volunteers. I also like to thank Marilyn
Vella, Bep Dawes and Ray Wall who edited and proofread our
newsletters, so they were ready for publication.

Volunteers
Total volunteer hours for all areas of the RSL during lockdown
amounted to 9,632. Of these, Welfare volunteers dedicated just
on 1190 to your welfare. Some are mentioned in this report,
others did work on a casual basis. All are sincerely thanked, your
dedication to Box Hill RSL welfare section is really appreciated.
I would like to thank Brenda Burr, Cheryl Frail, Joan Waters
and Bep Dawes who helped to support me when we were not
in lockdown during 2020, also a big thank you to Judy Coates
who turned-up throughout lockdown to help me with whatever
needed to be done. I really appreciate all their support.
Finally, thank you to John Haward and Committee, Denis
Fernando and his Staff, for all your support during 2020.

Faye Clark

Appeals
Although we could not have volunteers out in the shopping
centres collecting for either of our Appeals in 2020, Bep
Dawes still worked really hard, despite restrictions, to organize
participation by some schools, businesses and Aged Care
facilities. Our members also made donations by mail and our
web site, which all helped to make our Appeals a success. Thank
you Bep for your great work. Thank you also to Lindsay Burke
who helped Bep with deliveries etc.
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Box Hill RSL Sub Branch Inc

Section Reports
Memorabilia Report
What a year it was for Memorabilia due to the Covid lockdown.
Apart from this, we still kept going with Memorabilia, but not to
the extent we are used to. Instead of having four exhibitions, we
only had two and a half. The first exhibition was a carryover from
2019 when we installed the Scottish display. This display went on
to the end of February. It would have to be one of the longest
I have carried out and the members agreed saying it has been
the best display I have done. I have done many displays, some
of them were great and received enormous response from our
members. Two that come to mind were the landing at Gallipoli
and the 50th Anniversary of the Battle of Coral and Balmoral in
South Vietnam. Remember the tank we had in the display? It was
something else.
I had a fill-in display from late February to early March. It was
a portrait exhibition of the “Lost Diggers of Vignacourt”. This
exhibition was to be in the main Memorabilia cabinet for two
weeks and I was going to do the 100th Anniversary of HMAS
Cerberus, the training base at Hastings, when the lockdown
happened in Victoria. This was put on hold and, without pulling
our current display down, I decided to keep it till the RSL opened
again. The display was changed every couple of months with the
artwork of different diggers, and it worked with many members
stopping to admire and read the stories of these famous diggers
of WW1, and with the artwork painted by George Petrou.
I changed the WW1 exhibition, with various small changes, over
the 12-month period. One was a small letter of a WW1 Digger,
when one of our members was at the RSL for lunch with her
grandson when she noticed a letter on display from her father
who served in WW1. Some weeks after this discovery, she
brought her grandson back with a photo of her father who
wrote the letter, and I placed it beside the letter. It was quite
an emotional moment not only for the daughter and grandson
but also myself. This is what makes working with Memorabilia
over more than 15 years so worthwhile and I have met so many
people with similar stories like this one.
Another one comes to mind when I received a call from a
daughter of a member of ours. She had some interesting
Memorabilia which was found under her mother’s old house.
I met everyone as arranged, and in a small satchel was two

handguns: one was an Italian Beretta pistol from 1939 and the
other a German Luger from WW1. Both were in poor condition
but not as bad as to have them not restored which I am going to
do this year.
Although Victoria was in lockdown, I continued to work with
Memorabilia. People would ring with various items they had, and
I would arrange to meet them or they would leave the items at
the RSL. One of the items from our member Ray Jones was a
handbuilt model ship of HMS Supply he made after many hours
of work: the original being launched in 1759 which played an
important part in the foundation of the Colony of New South
Wales. Everything works on this model ship: guns, sails and
anchors. She is a credit to her builder and will go on display
shortly at our RSL.
Museums Victoria contacted me around mid-year to see if I
and anyone else I thought would be interested in doing some
workshops via Zoom. This was taken up with Lindsay Burke
and myself. We had three Zoom meetings along with various
members of other Sub-Branches. These meetings proved very
helpful and successful for all who attended. The meetings were
centred around storing and cataloguing Memorabilia. Around
February-March of 2021, Museums Victoria will be onsite at our
RSL where they will spend approximately six months cataloguing
and packing our memorabilia. This will be a huge job because we
have one of the largest collections of any RSL.
Those members who have visited our RSL after the lockdown
will notice, (as they move into the corridor where the lift goes
to the Deck area), a new piece of art. This work is of the famous
Nancy Wake AC, GM, and was bought for the RSL earlier this
year. I have to thank The Womens Auxiliary for their generous
donation in supplying the funds to pay for the framing and
electrical lighting for this portrait. We now have two prominent
art pieces of women that proudly hang in the RSL, the other
being Lt Colonel Vivian Bullwinkel AO, MBE, ARRC, ED. These
two women contributed greatly to our troops during the
Second World War.
During the lockdown it gave me time to reflect on my 15 years
doing Memorabilia. The first exhibition I did was on the Light
Horse. During this period, I have had many exhibitions, and I
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am regularly asked which was is the best I have done. I cannot
answer this question as all have been completely different, and
all of them have had different ideas put into them. As many
of you know, I go outside the square, by that I mean we have
had Army Jeeps in the Bistro area, a German motorbike and
sidecar, a horse... the list goes on. 2021 will see other displays
I have already geared up for. I know they will be as good if not
better than our past displays. One display that comes to mind
was the display on Bomber Command, the famous WW2 RAAF
Squadron. Fortunately, when I did this display, we had a few from
the Squadron at the RSL, and to see the look on their faces when
they saw the photos and exhibition will stay with me forever.
Memorabilia has taught me a great deal over the years, and the
people I have met were an inspiration. My mentor would have
to be Dr Brendon Nelson AO, from the AWM. He has given me
so many pieces of advice over the years, and once on a visit to
this RSL was heard to say that the exhibitions were as equal as
the AWM. General Sir Peter Cosgrove AK, CVO, MC, Governor
General of Australia, on his visit to the RSL also paid us a similar
comment, the same when the Chief of the Army Lt General
David Morrison AO also paid us a great compliment on our
exhibition on Afghanistan.
Apart from the GG, all of these people and many more still keep
in touch with me to see how things are going and are pleased to
receive photos of our displays, especially Brendon Nelson.
In closing this short report, I have to thank a few people who
have assisted me over 2020. I have been working with Paul Daley
over many years and again he has assisted me with printing etc.
Glen Bartlett is the person responsible for putting all my ideas
together in the exhibitions and I thank him for his patience and
professionalism. To all my suppliers who loan memorabilia to
complete various exhibitions, in particular David Garner, I thank
all of you.
Lindsay Burke has recently joined me with memorabilia and
Terry Sturrock, I thank these two for their assistance.
2020 is gone and we look forward to 2021 where I can assure
the members of Box Hill RSL, we will do many more displays to
coincide with various important anniversaries. And speaking of
our members, can I also thank all of you who have given me their
thoughts, whether good or bad, (fortunately not many bad), on
the displays we carry out for your enjoyment.

Brian Tateson.
Memorabilia

National Serviceman’s
Association Whitehorse
Sub-Branch
I acknowledge and thank our patron Brigadier Graeme Standish,
Ret, AM, RFD, ED,RL.
Thank you to the Box Hill RSL, President John Haward, his
committee, and staff for their support during the year. As we all
know it has been a very tumultuous year for all due to COVID-19.
Due to the restrictions placed on us, gatherings and meetings
have been non-existent in the past 12 months. Our last General
meeting was March 2020.
Since that last meeting, our lines of communication have been
open and essential business has continued via Zoom, email or
phone calls.
Health wise, some of us have had our fair share of trouble, but
with our caring membership, we have been able to reach out, help
and support those during that time. Thank you to all involved.
On the 3rd of October 2020 we lost one of our founding
members. Laurie Dodd. He was member No. 7 and a life
member. It was terrible for all members that we could not
attend his funeral or to have a Wake for him at the RSL. Plans
are in progress for one to be held sometime this year. Our
condolences to Vilma.
For the members who were able to watch his funeral service on
their computer, it was very emotional and frustrating, as we could
not be there in person to give him a proper Nasho send off.
The service was conducted by our Padre Lt Col Barrie Sutton,
Ret, who had been with him constantly providing comfort and
support to him and his family until his passing. Thank you Barrie.
During the year, our numbers have started to fall more
noticeably due to some members moving location and some
unable to attend meetings or community involvement, and age
is starting to show as well, we cannot stop that.
Now that the committee is up and running, (walking), we are
starting off the new year with a new outlook as to our future.
Thank you to the Box Hill RSL sub-branch committee and staff
for keeping us informed of proceedings and helping us to
resurrect again.

Ian Carnegie
President
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Darts

have to thank Donvale Flower Gallery for their support to the
Vietnam Veterans.

Unfortunately, for all members of the Darts Club, 2020 was a non-

Rod Burgess and myself attended the quarterly VVAA State
Conferences again via Zoom, and one of the things that came out
of these meetings, was that next year on Vietnam Veterans Day at
the Shrine of Remembrance, sadly will be our last one. This is to
coincide with the last of our troops leaving South Vietnam. Because
no money was spent in 2020 on VV Day, next year, 2021, will be big.

event. All intra-club events and all team events were postponed
due to COVID-19. There was no income for the club other than
the generous donation by the Board.
Hopefully 2021 will be a better year and competitions can resume.
As always, the Darts Club is looking for new members, so, if there
is any interest, please direct enquiries to the relevant Darts Club
representative.
I am not renewing my membership with the RSL this year and
would like to thank the Board of the RSL for their support and
wish all concerned with the Darts Club good luck.

David Spencer
President

Vietnam Veterans Box Hill
Sub-Branch
As I start this report for 2020, I am reminded of the VVAA Box
Hill Sub-Branch's last Committee meeting in March of this year
when we discussed so many ambitions for the rest of the year
and, as you know, everything came to a big halt. I remember
the date quite distinctly, it was Friday the 13th as I was at the
premiere of “Rolling Thunder Vietnam”. The show itself was
amazing and far better than the earlier ones: there were around
1200 Veterans at this performance, but sadly the show came to
a halt and many Veterans missed out.
Your Committee met regularly via Zoom, and, during one of
these meetings, we decided each Committee person have a
certain number of members’ names and contacts and should
ring them to see how they were going. This proved to be so
successful and the response we had was overwhelming. The
Zoom meetings also proved to be successful with great input
from all the Committee. We held our breath as we came out
of lockdown and were hoping to have our Christmas party but,
unfortunately, to no avail. After we did come out of lockdown,
your Committee were able to meet face to face and have a
lunch together in November. This was not a meeting but a gettogether and many topics were discussed between ourselves,
which our Secretary, Rod Burgess, will inform you of in 2021.
Because of the lockdown, one of the most daunting things to hit
me was ANZAC Day, Vietnam Veterans Day and Remembrance
Day. On each of these days, only John Haward and myself were
allowed to lay wreaths for our respective organisations. It was an
eerie feeling not having any crowds whatsoever at the Cenotaph.
The wreaths on each occasion were especially made and I

We all have been affected in some way by Covid-19 and the
lockdown. One thing that comes to mind was the loss of some
of our members and those associated with our Sub-Branch.
Our hearts and condolences go out to the wives, partners and
friends of those families. Pauline Kook, an integral part of this
sub-branch, passed away after a long illness. To Charles and his
family, we extend our condolences and our thoughts are with
you all. The members of the AATTV, Australia’s most highly
decorated unit in South Vietnam took a heavy loss, and all from
VVAA Box Hill Sub-Branch pass onto Mike Wells, the President
of the AATTV Association at Box Hill, our good wishes.
As President of the Vietnam Veterans Box Hill Sub-Branch, on
behalf of my Committee and all our members, would like to thank
President John Haward and his Committee of Box Hill RSL for
giving us so much support in the form of a cash grant. I would also
like to thank Denis Fernando, General Manager, for his support to
the Vietnam Veterans along with his staff, in particular Chantelle
Casse, for all the great work they have afforded us.
I would be out of order if I did not take this opportunity to thank
my Committee publicly: Vice President Bill Waterman who has
done a terrific job not only with his input to the Committee
but also publishing Boo Coo News. Secretary Rod Burgess
who keeps all the members informed by emails. Rod and I talk
every day on various topics both at Sub-Branch and State level.
Treasurer Bob Glaubitz who keeps our books in order (not a
cent goes by him without being accounted for). Committee:
Mike Charenko, who does a great job with taking charge
of membership, Gerry Wallbridge, an inaugural Committee
member, Andrew Guest, John Sheehan and Reg Davis, I thank
them all for their input.
In closing, I say this with fingers crossed, I hope and trust that
2021 is a great year for everyone, and that we are over the
lockdowns, and all stay safe and well. Please try to attend as
many events that our Secretary Rod Burgess passes onto you
by emails, he works very hard on these so let’s help him out.
Remember, they are all for your benefit. Should you have any
queries or would like to discuss any issue, please feel free to call
me anytime on 0428 331 946.

Brian Tateson
President
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Day Section

Angling

I took over as Co-ordinator of the Day Section at our AGM in

Like everybody, the fishing section was hit hard with Covid-19

January 2020, when several other members offered to help in

but we still got out and did some fishing.

various ways. Many thanks to all concerned. Unfortunately, with
the closure of the RSL because of Covid-19, we could not meet
after our first meeting in March 2020.

caught. We held our AGM on the 26th February and managed
one more charter on the 17th March. Then we had to stay home

Sadly, some members have passed away during, but not because

and dream about fishing, thank God for YouTube. So after a long

of the pandemic, including Bob McLellan, our previous Co-

lay-off, Graeme, our events coordinator, got us on a charter on

ordinator. Several others have had health problems so I wish

3rd December with 48 whiting caught and, like everybody else,

them better health in 2021.

we are looking forward to a better 2021

Despite having little income for most of 2020, the RSL very

The fishing section has gone from strength to strength and its

generously gave our Section $1000. It is much appreciated so

because of the great support from the RSL and our sponsors.

thank you to the Committee.
As number restrictions eased, we have now resumed meetings.
Our first one was on 9th February 2021 and it was great to

A big thank you must go to Graeme Furmston for the organising
of all the events, and, of course, the rest of the committee.

welcome back familiar faces – even masks could not hide the

Charles Kook

smiles. New members are always welcome.

President

Let’s hope this is a sign of better times ahead for everyone when

Women’s Auxiliary

we can once again enjoy the facilities offered by the RSL.

Mary Simpson

In the 2019 report Gwen Horder’s final words were that we are

Day Section Co-ordinator

not to be. We began well with our Annual Meeting and two

Billiards & Snooker

hoping for another very good year in 2020, however, this was
new enthusiastic committee members recruited, and strong
membership numbers.

What can I say about 2020? Most of us watched plenty of

Our program for functions and outings was arranged but,

movies, and probably improved our crossword/Sudoku skills and

unfortunately, we only managed to enjoy one function in the

physical fitness.

Upton Room, Kaye’s Fashions.

With about seven weeks of practice most of us are looking

Despite the problems of the pandemic, our healthy bank

forward to the various tournaments of the Summer Session

balance enabled us to still assist welfare in their much-needed

which will run until June. Come July, we will start the Winter

projects.

Session and are seeking more players to play competition for

In early September came the sad news of Gwen Horder’s

teams playing from Monday to Thursday at their convenience.
Oh well, one can play on all days too!
Hopefully soon, we will have the tables and lighting refurbished
at a considerable cost. Request all members and guests to take
utmost care (especially using chalk on their cues constantly which
otherwise damages the expensive cloth) in careful maintenance of
tables and other equipment.
As always, we look forward to welcoming new members -- both
men and women to utilise our superb facility. Free coaching can be
arranged with many of our senior players who are more than willing.

Suresh Alphonse
President
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The first charter was February 18th with a total of 52 whiting

passing. Gwen was a stalwart of the Women’s Auxiliary and she
we will be greatly missed.
State Secretary Lynese Goldie contacted our President Joan and
asked that an interim Secretary be appointed. I have acted in
that role and will be standing for the position of Secretary at our
Annual Meeting in February.
During this difficult year, emails, phone calls and snail mail have
kept the membership in touch throughout the COVID lockdown.
Members of the committee were very happy when they were able,
at last, to get together for lunch in the dining area pre-Christmas.
There have been a number of changes in the make-up of the
Committee. Many thanks to those willing helpers who have

SECTION
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stepped up to make the running of the Auxiliary a smooth and
efficient process.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Sub-Branch
Committee and the extended Club staff for their ongoing support.
We hope that 2021 will be a better year for all.

Helen Jones
Interim Secretary (Hon)

TPI Eastern Suburbs Social Club
The 2020 year started well and we were able to hold meetings
in January, February and early March, however, after that, the
year closed down for us as it did for many other people and
organisations. We were fortunate to be able to hold a Christmas get
together in early December which was attended by many members.
In view of the lack of activities in 2020, the club’s members
decided not to change the Committee for 2021 and all the
current committee members agreed to stay in their positions
for 2021.
During 2020 we were able to enjoy the following events:
In January we had a group get together at the Ringwood club
for lunch. This was purely a social outing and all those who
attended enjoyed an afternoon of friendship, good food and a
few tried their luck on the machines.

little more than our budget. We preferred to put the funds into
product in the bags. We do have a few members outside the
eastern suburbs area so we organised a local Woolworths’ store
to pick and pack a similar bag of items and then our members
were able to pick up the bag.
As mentioned above we were able to hold a Christmas
function at the Cherry Hill Tavern in Doncaster East. Forty
of our members attended (as did Santa in his summer beach
suit, together with a mask). Santa also brought a large bag of
chocolate treats which he handed out to everyone.
The Committee met in January 2021 to plan out the activities
for this year and have a busy year planned, (subject to Covid
restriction of course). Our mid-February event has already had
to be cancelled. We look forward to providing another year of
social interaction and entertainment for our members.
We would also like to welcome the new members who have
joined our group recently.

Ken Turnham
President

Legacy Widows’ Section
As we all know the year 2020 was bad for all the clubs. We had
our first meeting in February and a few days before our birthday
meeting in March the pandemic altered everything.

There was also a small group who attended Morning Melodies at
the Box Hill Golf Club and sang along with “Neil Diamond”.

We have kept in touch by phone and have organised our

In March we had a trip planned to visit HMS Cerberus for a tour
and lunch however, this had to be cancelled about a week out
due to closure of the base to civilians as a result of Covid-19.

after our first meeting.

In May we set up a “Call a member” program where our
committee took on a commitment to call a list of members on
a regular basis to check that all was ok and to offer someone
to chat to if required. We thank those committee members for
their assistance.

Johnson, Loris Earl, Betty Monk and Bettina Pollard.

October was busy for the committee as DVA held Veterans
Health Week during the month and we decided to apply for a
grant which we used, together with club funds, to organise the
delivery of a hamper bag to all paid up members. We chose
a collection of fruit, healthy grains plus a few treats and then
asked a Woolworths’ store to do a pick and pack of just over 40
bags for our member families. Fortunately, the five-kilometre
limit was lifted the day before the scheduled delivery date, so a
few Committee members set out across the eastern suburbs to
deliver the hamper bags. Thank you to those involved. We did
look at using Uber for the deliveries but this worked out to be a

meetings for this year starting off with having lunch together
Sadly, we have lost several of our members over the past year,
but thankfully not to Covid-19. They were Diana Parker, Celia
We are very grateful to our Legatees: Norm McDonnell, Pam
Whitfield and Robyn Weir as they kept in touch during the year
and were there if we needed help or advice.
Hopefully this year will be a much better one for everyone.

Glenys Lewis
Hon. President
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Swimming

Again, we express thanks to the RSL for its continuing support

Along with many sporting sections, we say thank goodness 2020

membership and more enjoyment for swimmers.

is over.
The year started promisingly for the team as we headed over the
New South Wales border to Albury for the 36th year in a row
and this time were overall winners in a very enjoyable carnival. In
addition to the overall points, the team won the 10-person relay
trophy; Kyle Robinson (junior) and John Bell took out the Braced
Pairs and Ashton Robinson (junior) won the 100 metres.
It was expected that we would all head to Albury over the
Australia Day weekend to attend our 37th carnival over the border.
Unfortunately, border restrictions at 10 January 2021 have resulted

We wish everyone a safe, healthy and successful year in 2021.
All Box Hill RSL members are welcome to join us at our fortnightly
Sunday evening swims at Croydon Aquahub, please contact Steven
O’Connell at soconnell@soccal.com.au for details.
We would love to see more Box Hill RSL members enjoy the
benefits of swimming and join our social atmosphere at the
pool. We cater for all ages and abilities and all our events are
handicapped which means you don’t have to be as fast as Ian
Thorpe to enjoy yourself.

in the carnival being cancelled this year.

BENEFITS OF SWIMMING

On returning to Melbourne, we were full of optimism for a great

1.

year of swimming. Unfortunately, after only four more club swims
at our exceptional pool at Croydon Aquahub in Civic Square,
Croydon, the curtain closed on our year of swimming. This meant
that our own carnival and those of Bentleigh and Mentone were

Low-impact exercise is ideal for ageing Joints

2. Helps to improve flexibility and range of motion
3. Helps to improve stability, reducing fall risk
4. Promotes cardiovascular health
5. Provides socialisation opportunities

cancelled in 2020.

6. Improves sleep

In addition, given the limited opportunity to swim (we held our last

Source: Seniorlink Blog – 6 benefits of swimming for seniors – May

club swim on 15 March 2020), there were no Club Awards for 2020.

11, 2020

Despite the issues arising in 2020, we are pleased that all of our

Steven O’Connell

members remained well but are straining at the leash to get back
into the pool together.
Our first swim night is set for Sunday 7th February 2021 at 5.30pm
at Croydon Aquahub in Civic Square, Croydon, and following
swims are scheduled for the same time on 21st February, 14th
March and 28th March and will follow generally fortnightly until
mid-November.
It was intended that we would send a team to Southport to
compete in the National Carnival last April. Unfortunately, this
carnival was postponed to March 2021 and, given the uncertainty
of travel restrictions, Box Hill will not be represented at the
National Carnival in 2021.
We are hoping that the swimming carnival hosted by Box Hill RSL
Swimming Section will be able to take place on Saturday 29 May
2021 at Croydon Aquahub, where teams from Albury, Bentleigh
and Mentone may attend.
Much of the success in our Club can be attributed to our
Committee, which also represents us at the AIF Swimming
Association (Vic Branch). As always, our members happily helped
with our club's functioning, and also provided ongoing assistance
to other clubs in running their carnivals.
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and financial assistance during the year, which helps to promote

Secretary / Treasurer

Bowls Section
Like all organisations, whether it be business or sporting groups,
including families as well, it has been a hard 12 months due to
COVID-19. However, I would like to say the Box Hill R.S.L. Bowling
Club worked hard on surviving like all others had to do.
Early in our 2020 Bowling season, we had a life line thanks to
Blackburn North Bowling Club and this enabled our Club to keep
bowlers on the green for a couple of months until we were able to
return to Nelson Road. I must add it was great to be back playing
on our green and the facilities that the RSL offers.
As I am doing this report mid-season I cannot give you pennant
positions on the ladder except to say we are looking strong,
especially our Tuesday teams.
I am very proud again to be President of such an enthusiastic and
friendly Club. We continue to give this opportunity to all ages
the chance to participate in a healthy and active sport. I would
encourage anybody who may be interested in joining our Club
not to hesitate, we will offer all the enjoyment that comes with
bowling, with very friendly people and coaching is always available
for newcomers.

SECTION
REPORTS
Like all annual reports, as President, I thank the many people in
the club who put many volunteer hours into keeping the club
professional and successful.
I start at the top with our Chairman, Brian MacDonald, for those
who know him will appreciate the amount of time and expertise
he has offered to our Bowling Club. There is nothing Brian can’t do
in relation to his role as Chairman; thank you, Brian. Next, we have
Vice Chairperson Helen Harrington who has been amazing with
her skills in communicating to our members via email on a regular
basis. Helen also communicates with the Sub Branch as to our
requirements and what is necessary with the COVID-19 regulations
which may affect the running of the bowling section. She became
our No. 1 COVID marshall as well on many occasions.
Like all good women she has had a good man supporting her in
husband John; apart from being Green director and the wonderful
job he does with his team, he was also our water boy, when our
water fountains were turned off due to COVID. It meant on bowling
days, he personally delivered dozens of bottled water to our venue.
My Vice president, John Woodford, has been a great support
to me as well as the Match Committee. He also took on being a
selector. John will be a great leader in the future of our Club.
Like all busy Secretaries, I would like to acknowledge Allan Turk for
the many hours he puts into this position. Allan wears many hats:
Anzac House, Saturday Chair of selectors, garden crew, and also
runs our night pennant. It is amazing how he finds time to carry
out all these roles.
Thank you to Mal Hams our Treasurer. His role entails a lot of work
collecting fees, paying prize money, regular trips to the bank and
paying bills. He is always at the club to help out whenever he can. It
is a pleasure to see him regularly with that infectious smile.
The role of being a selector is never easy, every bowler should
try this job once at least to realise it is hard to make everybody
happy, but they try their best in doing the right thing by the Club in
general. Thanks to Saturday selectors, Allan Turk, John Woodford
and Michael Frail. Then we have our Tuesday selectors led by Judy
Smith, with the help of Judy Coates and Heather Arnel. It would be
remiss of me not to give Judy Smith a very special mention because
she does so much behind the scenes in regard to all matters that
relate to having our club perform in a professional way.
The Chairman of our Match Committee Peter Houghton is truly
amazing; he puts so many hours into our Club which allows our
bowlers to bowl all year round. He, also with the help of John
Woodford, organises Club Championships. When we were using
Blackburn North earlier in the season, Peter coordinated with
them and organised practice on Thursdays and Sundays on a
regular basis. Peter is a special person and our club is blessed to

have a member with so much dedication.
At this stage we have not completed our Club Championship
games; good luck to all those participating.
There are various Sub Committees that go about their duties, but
because of COVID this year, it meant some adjustments, as an
example, our sponsors were put on hold for six months.
Alf Maglitto will review our existing sponsors and encourage new
ones to get on board as our club gets back to normal. It has been
a lean year in holding any social functions. We did manage to have
a great get together in December at the Eastern Bell restaurant.
On that night, we acknowledged our 2019/20 Club Championship
winners. Thanks to Cheryl Ryan with the help of Cheryl Frail for
a wonderful night. I hope there will be many more occasions like
this in the near future. I consider social functions one of the most
important aspects of our club.
Mick and Cheryl Frail’s Saturday raffle also suffered , however,
as I am writing this report, we are hoping to start up again this
entertaining event on Saturdays after pennant. It is always a great
atmosphere with all the bowlers getting together discussing the
days results etc.
We have Hennie Pasveer in charge of uniforms and accessories;
thank you, Hennie.
I previously mentioned John Harrington and the green
maintenance, this also includes the Friday morning garden crew;
they do a wonderful job keeping the greens and the surrounds
looking great. Thanks Michael Frail, Kevin Moffatt, Ian Jennings,
Alan Schumer, Mal Hams and Allan Turk.
Now we are back at Nelson Road, our Green room has been put to
good use, thanks to Peter Leonard, Mike and Kevin for maintaining
our supplies. I also acknowledge our Coaches Harold Lepp, Bob
Jones and Ron Hutson; they are always available to coach new
bowlers and improve the skills of existing bowlers.
Unfortunately, each year as we send out our Annual report, there
is sadness in the loss of members in our Club. Our thoughts are
with the families. These members have passed on but leave us
with fond memories: John Kunek, Celia Johnson, Mick Newey,
Gwen Horder, Robert Howden, Sue Davis, Harry Westbury and
Glen Boyd. Finally, thank you to the Box Hill R.S.L. Sub Branch for
their support during these difficult times. Once again it has been a
privilege to be President of the Box Hill R.S.L. Bowls Section.

Dennis Arnel
President
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Vale 2020

LEST WE FORGET

Jurgen Ritters

Gregory Tucker

Sue Davis

Celia Johnson

Malcolm Lugg

Kevin Michael

Nancy Chadwick

Tan Lak

Keith McGuinness

Frank Evans

Bob McLellan

Averil Scholefield

John Duson

Christopher Homes

Laurie Dodd

Roger Grigg

Lorna House

Ken Nicholson

John Counsell

Jocelyn Davis

John Stevens

Kevin Ingleton

Arthur Collison

Harry Westbury

Jack Whitten

Alan O’Toole

Graham Kendall

Arthur Atkinson

Patricia Trevare

Bettina Pollard

Robert Hammer

Maureen Brayne

Joan Sampson

Victor Pill

Jack Philp

Bruce Davies

Michael Newey

David Delaney

Ronald Bruce

Alan Spencer

Christopher Watts

Shirley Fitzsimons

Di Parker

Bryan Davis

Jack Hodgson

Eric Aldred

Doreen Knop

Cathie Wall

Elaine Chapman

Pauline Kook

Betty Eastham

Betty Monk

Loris Earl

Margaret Cousins

James Chapman

Bob Howden

Ivan Smith

Thomas O’Donnell

Joyce May

Irma McKirdy

John Timms

William Stockdale

Joan Gale

Lindsay Bail

Jim Parker

Brian Murphy

Glen Boyd

Gwen Horder

John Willoughby

Robert Clarke

Box Hill RSL Sub Branch Inc

Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

4,369,050

12,962,622

Raw materials and consumables used

(529,381)

(1,591,046)

Bar expenses

(103,230)

(406,228)

(1,210,729)

(4,045,816)

(496,881)

(1,420,811)

(4,936)

(19,295)

(260,538)

(814,237)

Employee benefits expense

(610,468)

(907,884)

Depreciation

(306,449)

(349,962)

Occupancy expenses

(367,127)

(1,938,510)

Administrative expenses

(396,119)

(821,973)

(7,988)

(12,075)

(84,824)

(206,981)

(9,620)

427,804

-

-

(9,620)

427,804

-

-

(9,620)

427,804

Note

Revenue

2

Gaming expenses
Catering and restaurant expenses
TAB expenses
Welfare expenses

Administration and operating expenditure:

Investment property expenses
Other expenses
(Deficit) / Surplus before Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense
(Deficit) / Surplus after Income Tax Expense
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
the members
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL
REPORTS
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2020

Note

2020

2019

$

$

Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents

13

3,604,350

3,488,130

Trade & other assets

3

317,074

184,019

Inventories

4

29,819

45,419

Related party loans

5

100,000

100,000

4,051,243

3,817,568

Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Related party loans

5

4,048,762

4,146,489

Plant and equipment

6

505,908

536,661

Gaming licence entitlements

7

4,211,538

4,390,244

Investment property

8

1,379,970

1,379,244

Other intangible assets

9

56,360

70,402

10,202,538

10,523,040

14,253,781

14,340,608

Total Non Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Trade payables & other liabilities

10

676,474

756,733

Provisions

12

529,853

485,853

Other liabilities

11

63,967

104,915

1,270,294

1,347,501

Total Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Trade payables & other liabilities

10

3,725,989

3,725,989

Provisions

12

19,600

19,600

Total Non Current Liabilities

3,745,589

3,745,589

Total Liabilities

5,015,883

5,093,090

Net Assets

9,237,898

9,247,518

907,121

907,121

Retained surplus

8,330,777

8,340,397

Total Equity

9,237,898

9,247,518

Equity
Gift Fund

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Gift Fund

Retained surplus

Total

$

$

$

907,121

7,912,593

8,819,714

427,804

427,804

8,340,397

9,247,518

(9,620)

(9,620)

8,330,777

9,237,898

2020

2019

$

$

4,139,242

12,911,554

(3,876,597)

(12,034,001)

18,811

64,193

281,456

941,746

(726)

(1,536)

31,748

39,316

(293,985)

(189,432)

-

(98,052)

(262,963)

(249,704)

97,727

(1,853,829)

-

(6,424)

97,727

(1,860,253)

116,220

(1,168,211)

3,488,130

4,656,341

3,604,350

3,488,130

Surplus attributable to members
Balance at 31 December 2019

907,121

Surplus/ (deficit) attributable to members
Balance at 31 December 2020

907,121

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net cash (outflow) from operating activities

13

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of assets associated with investment property
Proceeds from disposal of gaming machines and associated
hardware
Purchase of gaming machines and associated software
Payments made for gaming entitlements
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Provison of loan to the Patriotic Fund
Repayment of finance lease arrangements
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities
Net increase /(decrease) in cash held
Cash at beginning of financial year
Cash at end of financial year
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL
REPORTS
Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This special purpose financial report has been prepared for distribution to the members of the Sub- Branch to fulfil the Association’s
financial reporting requirements under the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits
Commission Act 2012. The accounting policies used in the preparation of this report, as described below, are consistent with the
financial reporting requirements of the Act, and are, in the opinion of the committee, appropriate to meet the needs of members.
The requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations, and other professional reporting requirements, do
not have mandatory applicability to the Sub-Branch, except to the extent required by the Act, because it is not a “reporting entity”.
Basis of Accounting
The report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the following applicable Australian Accounting Standards and
Accounting Interpretations:
AASB 107: Statement of Cash Flows
AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
AASB 110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date;
AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards; and
AASB 1054: Australian Additional Disclosures
No other Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations or other authoritive pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board have been applied.
Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected
non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.
The following is a summary of the material policies adopted by the Association in the preparation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.					
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in current
liabilities on the statement of financial position.			
Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value basis. Costs are assigned on a first-in first-out basis.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.
Plant and equipment is measured initially at cost. Cost includes all directly attributable expenditure incurred including costs to get the
asset ready for its use as intended by management. Costs include an estimate of any expenditure expected to be incurred at the end of
the asset’s useful life.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Committee for indications of impairment. If any such
indications exist, an impairment test is carried out, and any impairment losses on the assets recognise.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives (commencing from the
time the asset is ready for use). Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease
or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.		
The depreciable amount is the carrying value of the asset less estimated residual amounts. The residual amount is based on what a
similar asset of the expected condition of the asset at the end of its useful life could be sold for.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Depreciation rates are as follows:		
- Gaming machines – 25%
- Computer software – 25%
Gaming Licence Entitlements
The Sub-branch has elected to account for its gaming entitlements on a cost basis.
Other Intangible Assets
Software has a finite life and is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. It has an estimated useful life
of four years.		
Investment property									
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are included in surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are determined
based on the Committee’s annual evaluation, and an independent valuation conducted at least every five years, unless volatile market
conditions warrant more frequent independent valuation.
Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions to
the instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Association commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the
asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where
the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or
loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances,
valuation techniques are adopted.
Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing
component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15.63.
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FINANCIAL
REPORTS
Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:
- amortised cost; or
- fair value through profit and loss.
A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit and loss if the financial liability is:
- a contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business Combinations applies;
- held for trading; or
- initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
All other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability, that is, it is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.
A financial liability is held for trading if:
- it is incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;
- it is part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or
- it is a derivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a financial guarantee contract or a derivative that is in
effective hedging relationships)
Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.
The change in fair value of a financial liability attributable to changes in the issuer's credit risk is taken to other comprehensive
income and is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Instead, it is transferred to accumulated surplus upon
derecognition of the financial liability.
If taking the change in credit risk in other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an accounting mismatch, then these gains
or losses are taken to profit or loss rather than other comprehensive income.
A financial liability cannot be reclassified.
Financial asset
Financial assets are subsequently measured at:
- amortised cost;
- fair value through other comprehensive income; or
- fair value through profit and loss
on the basis of the two primary criteria:
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and
- the business model for managing the financial assets.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it meets the following conditions:
- the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principle amount outstanding on specified dates.
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets the following
conditions:
- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principle amount outstanding on specified dates; and
- the business model for managing the financial assets comprises both contractual cash flows collection and the selling of the
financial asset.
By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income’s measurement conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss.
The Association initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit and loss if:
- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as accounting mismatch)
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases;
- it is in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the Association was
documented appropriately, so as the performance of the financial liability that was part of an Association’s financial liabilities or
financial assets can be managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and
- it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise required by
the contract.
The initial designation of the financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit and loss is a one-time option on initial
classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.
Derecognition
Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the statement of
financial position.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to the
terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred in such
a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.
All the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of a financial asset:
- the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;
- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and
- the Association no longer controls the asset (i.e. no practical ability to make unilateral decision to sell the asset to a third party).
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in an investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
On derecognition of an investment in equity which was elected to be classified under fair value through other comprehensive
income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in an investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated surplus.
Impairment
The Association recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income;
- loan commitments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss; and
- financial guarantee contracts that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Loss allowance is not recognised for:
- financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or
- equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial instrument.
A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.
The Association uses the following approaches to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9:
- the general approach;
- the simplified approach;
- the purchased or originated credit impaired approach; and
- low credit risk operational simplification.
General approach
Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Association assesses whether the financial instruments are credit
impaired, and if:
- the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Association measures the
loss allowance of the financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses; and
- there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Association measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
Simplified approach
The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but instead requires the
recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times.
This approach is applicable to:
- trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions that are within the scope of AASB 15, that contain a
significant financing component; and
- lease receivables.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into consideration various data to
derive an expected credit loss, (i.e. diversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience etc).
Purchased or originated credit-impaired approach
For a financial asset that is considered to be credit impaired (not on acquisition or origination), the Association measures any
change in its lifetime expected credit loss as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in
profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.
Evidence of credit impairment includes:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;
- a breach of contract (e.g. default or past due event);
- where a lender has granted to the borrower a concession, due to borrower's financial difficulty, that the lender would not
otherwise consider;
- where it is probable the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and
- the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.
Low credit risk operational simplification approach
If a financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the initial reporting date, the Association assumes that the credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and accordingly can continue to recognise a loss allowance of 12-month
expected credit loss.
In order to make such determination that the financial asset has low credit risk, the Association applies its internal credit risk
ratings or other methodologies using a globally comparable definition of low credit risk.
A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if:
- there is a low risk of default by the borrower;				
- the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and		
- adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term, may, but not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.				
A financial asset is not considered to carry low credit risk merely due to existence of collateral, or because a borrower has a
lower risk of default than the risk inherent in the financial assets, or lower than the credit risk of the jurisdiction in which it
operates.
Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements
At each reporting date, the Association recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to that asset.
Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income. The amount in relation to change in credit risk is transferred from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.
For financial assets that are unrecognised (e.g. loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial guarantees), a provision for loss
allowance is created in the statement of financial position to recognise the loss allowance.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the Sub-Branch reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying
value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.					
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Sub-Branch estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.		
Employee benefits
Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual and long service leave.
The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements. Based on past experience,
the Sub-Branch does not expect the full amount of annual leave classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months.
However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the Sub-Branch does not have an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.		
Revenue
Revenue from the provision of services and sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods and services to customers.
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
Income Tax
The Sub-Branch is not liable for income tax. The ongoing Income Exempt Charity status is subject to the Sub-Branch meeting the
terms of the Deed of Settlement with the Commissioner of Taxation of the Commonwealth of Australia.			
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues and expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from
the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows are
presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financial activities, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.

Comparative Figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the
current financial year.		

Significant accounting judgments
The Committee evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. In the current financial year, all such estimates are deemed to be ‘normal’ estimations in the ordinary
course of business.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
2

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

2020

2019

$

$

455,396

1,450,766

2,108,245

7,786,020

962,512

3,014,687

28,697

25,018

814,783

679,146

(583)

6,985

4,369,050

12,962,622

84,100

67,967

-

-

84,100

67,967

160,603

6,687

72,371

109,365

317,074

184,019

29,819

45,419

Included in operating surplus are the following items of
operating revenue:
- bar trading income
- gaming income
- catering income
- investment property income
- other income
‑ profit/ (deficit) on disposal of fixed assets

3

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Receivables
Provision for impairment of receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments and other assets

4

INVENTORIES
Stock on hand at cost

5

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The loan to the Box Hill RSL Sub Branch Patriotic Fund is non interest bearing and is unsecured. It has repayment
terms of $100,000 per annum.
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the year:

6

- Rent paid from the Sub-Branch to the Patriotic Fund

196,138

1,672,956

- Contribution towards Welfare Co-ordinators wages
paid from the Patriotic Fund to the Sub Branch

36,000

60,000

- Honorariums paid

23,500

35,167

2,373,812

2,135,861

(1,867,904)

(1,599,200)

505,908

536,661

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Gaming machines and plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
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for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)

7

2020

2019

$

$

1,760,549

1,760,549

(1,471,105)

(1,292,399)

289,444

468,150

3,922,094

3,922,094

-

-

3,922,094

3,922,094

4,211,538

4,390,244

1,379,970

1,379,244

183,172

183,172

(126,812)

(112,770)

56,360

70,402

Trade creditors

514,531

489,421

Sundry creditors & accruals

161,943

267,312

676,474

756,733

3,725,989

3,725,989

GAMING LICENCE ENTITLEMENTS
2012 Entitlements at cost
Less: Accumulated Amortisation

2022 Entitlements at cost
Less: Accumulated Amortisation

8

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment property ‑ at fair value

9

OTHER INTANGIBLES ASSETS
Computer software
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

10 TRADE PAYABLES & OTHER LIABILTIIES
Current

Non Current
Payable – Gaming entitlements

The Sub-Branch executed an ‘Offer Deed Poll’, where in it would acquire 103 gaming entitlements at a cost of $38,079 each for
the period 16 August 2022 to 15 August 2032. A deposit of 5% has been paid, subsequent instalments may be deferred over the
life of the entitlements or paid up front.
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Notes TO and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)

11

2020

2019

$

$

Subscriptions in advance

47,966

81,954

Gift cards

14,729

15,492

1,272

7,469

63,967

104,915

238,086

194,249

291,767

291,604

529,853

485,853

19,600

19,600

OTHER LIABILITIES
Current

Other income in advance

12

PROVISIONS

Current
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave

Non-Current
Provision for long service leave
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for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)

13

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(a)

Reconciliation of Cash

2020

2019

$

$

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in
the statement of financial position as follows:

(b)

Cash at bank and on hand

1,862,084

1,522,842

Short term deposits

1,742,266

1,965,288

3,604,350

3,488,130

(9,620)

427,804

485,155

528,179

583

(6,985)

(133,055)

(28,218)

15,600

10,999

(121,207)

(61,087)

44,000

71,054

281,456

941,746

102,649

141,817

‑ between 1 year and 5 years

-

102,649

‑ greater than 5 years

-

-

102,649

244,466

Reconciliation of Net Cash used in Operating Activities to
Operating (Deficit) / Surplus			
Operating (Deficit) / Surplus after income tax
Non Cash Flows in operating (Deficit) / Surplus:
Depreciation and amortisation
Profit/(Loss) on disposal of non current assets
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables and other assets
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in provisions
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities

14

CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS
At balance date the Sub Branch had the following
contracted commitments:
‑ no later than 1 year

The commitments are inclusive of GST and reflect all future increases known at balance date.
The commitments recorded relate to contracts for the ongoing monitoring, support and servicing of gaming machines.
Where the term of service provision is not specified in the agreements, an assumption has been made that the
commitments will cease when the current Entitlement Related Agreement for Venues expires on 15 August 2022.
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Declaration by Members of the Committee
The Members of the Committee (‘the Committee’) of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Inc. declare that in the Committee's opinion:
a) 	there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they
become due and payable; and
b) 	the financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit
Commission Act 2012.		

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Regulation 2013.		
													

.

President: ........................................................

Treasurer: ........................................................

		

		

John Haward

Dated 02/02/2021

42

Arthur Merryweather

FINANCIAL
REPORTS
Independent Audit Report
To the Members of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Inc
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Box Hill RSL
Sub-Branch Inc (“the Sub Branch”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, and the Committee’s declaration.
In our opinion the financial report of the Sub Branch is properly drawn up, including:
a.
giving a true and fair view of the Sub Branch’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its
financial performance for the year ended; and
b.
complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and with the
Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-forProfits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibility under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report. We are independent of the Sub Branch in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the
Committee’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the
ACNC Act. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.
Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Committee of the Sub Branch is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is
appropriate to meet the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the ACNC Act. The
Committee’s responsibility also includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Committee is responsible for assessing the Sub Branch’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Committee either intends to liquidate the Sub Branch or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Sub Branch’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Audit Report
To the Members of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Inc (cont’d)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Stannards Accountants and Advisors

James Dickson
Partner
Date: 2/02/2021

Summary of Income and Expenditure Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

1,976,385

5,390,215

39,520

77,136

2,015,905

5,467,351

(1,764,987)

(4,225,310)

(260,538)

(814,237)

Net Operating (Deficit) / Surplus

(9,620)

427,804

EBITDAR

671,673

2,628,939

% Staff Costs to Revenue

38.30%

28.50%

Income – Operating
Income – Non-Operating
Total Income
Operating expenditure
Welfare expenses
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Summary Income Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

Bar trading – Net

194,497

581,477

Gaming room – Net

897,516

3,740,204

93,919

465,891

873

(3,734)

Subscriptions

108,242

146,451

Sundry Income

681,921

452,941

(583)

6,985

1,976,385

5,390,215

18,811

64,193

20,709

12,943

39,520

77,136

2,015,905

5,467,351

455,396

1,450,766

(157,669)

(463,061)

297,727

987,705

Bar expense

9,897

37,832

License fees

-

1,102

9,853

31,275

81,396

332,371

2,084

3,648

103,230

406,228

194,497

581,477

Operating Income

Catering – Net
TAB – Net

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of gaming machines

Non-Operating Income
Interest received
Investment property - Net

TOTAL INCOME

Bar Trading Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020
Income
Sales
Less cost of sales
Gross Profit
Less Expenses

Superannuation
Wages – Bar
WorkCover premiums

Net Operating Income
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Gaming Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

Gaming revenue

2,108,245

7,786,020

Gross Profit

2,108,245

7,786,020

350,697

585,944

33,974

271,739

496,535

2,460,831

36,201

62,358

287,395

657,358

5,927

7,586

1,210,729

4,045,816

897,516

3,740,204

962,512

3,014,687

Less cost of sales

(371,712)

(1,127,985)

Gross Profit

590,800

1,886,702

Other catering expenses

23,091

64,308

Superannuation

53,056

117,675

Wages

411,271

1,225,065

9,463

13,763

496,881

1,420,811

93,919

465,891

TAB commission

5,809

15,561

Gross Profit

5,809

15,561

4,936

19,295

4,936

19,295

873

(3,734)

Income

Less Expenses
Gaming on-costs
Gaming expenses / promotions
State gaming tax
Superannuation
Wages
WorkCover premiums

Net Operating Income

Catering Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020
Income
Revenue

Less Expenses

WorkCover premiums

Net Operating Income

TAB Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020
Income

Less Expenses
TAB on-costs

Net Operating Surplus / (Deficit)
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Operating Expenditure Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020
$

2019
$

21,500
5,190
52,954
11,681
63,487
29,362
27,459
6,512
306,449
1,575
722
11,569
4,912
144,097
44,315
1,123
13,806
8,871
65,062
13,221
3,191
16,238
43,837
(534)
26,892
196,138
88,417
36,901
450
2,032
63,224
17,817
620
386,273
32,756
8,587
8,281

17,630
5,609
190,232
27,823
145,764
50,632
22,267
21,275
349,962
6,560
3,018
15,749
31,496
232,606
73,000
4,959
18,137
38,844
10,296
127,151
12,937
5,314
20,750
24,297
47,548
32,948
1,672,956
171,133
98,129
771
1,000
82,989
19,418
5,698
464,004
138,467
26,262
7,679

1,764,987

4,225,310

Operating Expenditure
Accounting fees
Advertising
ANZAC House operating support fees
Bank charges
Cleaning
Committee Expenses/Honarariums
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Depreciation
Entertainment
Fees and permits
Fringe benefits tax expense
Fund raising expenses
Gas and electricity
Insurance
Keno
Legal costs
Miscellaneous expense
Motor vehicle expenses
Payroll tax
Payroll services
Postage
Printing and stationery
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave
Rates and taxes
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Staff Training
Subscription expenses
Superannuation
Telephone
Uniforms
Wages ‑ Administration
Wages ‑ Reception
Waste disposal
WorkCover premiums
Total Operating Expense
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Welfare Expenditure Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

15,288

29,830

Donations

1,576

32,772

Funeral expenses

4,153

849

28,051

63,082

-

6,869

19,172

54,129

1,865

7,829

Postage

15,389

20,404

Printing and stationery

13,010

23,974

Remembrance of sacrifice

4,377

39,451

Room hire cost

9,323

59,526

Superannuation

3,986

18,120

Telephone

Welfare Expenditure
Administration fees

Grants to sporting bodies / Ex-Servicemen
Isolated persons program
Miscellaneous
Payroll tax

2,012

2,467

Transport/Trips

4,357

21,833

Volunteer expenses

5,033

21,195

47,332

175,848

445

2,012

85,169

234,047

260,538

814,237

Rental Income

28,697

25,018

Gross Profit

28,697

25,018

Insurance

1,554

1,449

Property Management Fees

1,543

1,342

719

2,724

1,138

1,520

Sundry Expenses

3,034

5,040

Total Rental Expense

7,988

12,075

20,709

12,943

Wages
WorkCover premiums
Subsidised meals
Total Welfare Expense

Investment Property Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Income

Less Expenses

Rates / Water
Repairs & Maintenance

Net Non-Operating Income
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Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note

2020

2019

$

$

198,638

1,700,090

(1,161,030)

(1,123,462)

(962,392)

576,628

-

-

(962,392)

576,628

-

-

(962,392)

576,628

6
3

177,164
33,212
210,376

1,615,797
1,615,797

4

Total Non Current Assets

23,123,838
23,123,838

23,132,770
23,132,770

Total Assets

23,334,214

24,748,567

100,000
100,000

354,234
100,000
454,234

Total Non Current Liabilities

4,048,762
4,048,762

4,146,489
4,146,489

Total Liabilities

4,148,762

4,600,723

19,185,452

20,147,844

19,185,452
19,185,452

20,147,844
20,147,844

Revenue

2

Expenses
(Deficit)/Surplus Before Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense
(Deficit)/Surplus After Income Tax Expense
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
the members

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2020

Note
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Trade & Other Receivables
Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current Liabilities
Trade payables & other liabilities
Related party borrowings

5

Total Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Related party borrowings

5

Net Assets
Equity
Retained surplus
Total Equity

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Retained surplus

Total

$

$

19,571,216

19,571,216

576,628

576,628

Balance at 31 December 2019

20,147,844

20,147,844

Deficit attributable to members

(962,392)

(962,392)

Balance at 31 December 2020

19,185,452

19,185,452

2020

2019

$

$

162,927

1,683,453

(463,365)

(131,442)

2,499

16,637

-

-

(297,939)

1,568,648

(1,042,967)

(3,385,156)

0

154,315

(1,042,967)

(3,230,841)

Net movement of funds between the Fund and the Box Hill
RSL - Sub Branch		

(97,727)

1,853,829

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities

(97,727)

1,853,829

(1,438,633)

191,636

1,615,797

1,424,161

177,164

1,615,797

Balance at 1 January 2019
Surplus attributable to members

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities

6

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Property, plant and equipment acquired
Sale proceeds from fixed assets
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash at beginning of financial year
Cash at end of financial year
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This special purpose financial report has been prepared for distribution to the members of the Sub- Branch to fulfil the Association’s
financial reporting requirements under the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 (the Act). The accounting
policies used in the preparation of this report, as described below, are consistent with the financial reporting requirements of the Act,
and are, in the opinion of the committee, appropriate to meet the needs of members.
The requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations, and other professional reporting requirements, do
not have mandatory applicability to the Fund, except to the extent required by the Act, because it is not a “reporting entity”.
Basis of Accounting
The report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the following applicable Australian Accounting Standards and
Accounting Interpretations:
AASB 107: Statement of Cash Flows
AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
AASB 110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date;
AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards; and
AASB 1054: Australian Additional Disclosures
No other Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations or other authoritive pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board have been applied.
Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected
non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.
The following is a summary of the material policies adopted by the fund in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in current
liabilities on the statement of financial position.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are included at cost or at valuation.
All assets, excluding freehold land and buildings from which rental income is derived are depreciated over their estimated economic
lives. The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed regularly such that it does not exceed its recoverable amount.
Depreciation rates are as follows:
- Buildings and improvements
- Plant and equipment
- Motor vehicles

2.50%
9% to 50%
20.00%

Straight line
Diminishing value
Straight line

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the
instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Fund commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e.
trade date accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where
the instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or
loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances,
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
valuation techniques are adopted.
Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing
component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in AASB 15.63.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:
- amortised cost; or
- fair value through profit and loss.
A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit and loss if the financial liability is:
- a contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business Combinations applies;
- held for trading; or
- initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
All other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
expense in profit or loss over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability, that is, it is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net carrying amount at initial recognition.
A financial liability is held for trading if:
- it is incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;
- it is part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or
- it is a derivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a financial guarantee contract or a derivative that is in
effective hedging relationships)				
Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.
The change in fair value of a financial liability attributable to changes in the issuer's credit risk is taken to other comprehensive
income and is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Instead, it is transferred to accumulated surplus upon
derecognition of the financial liability.
If taking the change in credit risk in other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an accounting mismatch, then these gains
or losses are taken to profit or loss rather than other comprehensive income.
A financial liability cannot be reclassified.
Financial asset
Financial assets are subsequently measured at:
- amortised cost;
- fair value through other comprehensive income; or
- fair value through profit and loss
on the basis of the two primary criteria:				
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1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and
- the business model for managing the financial assets.
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it meets the following conditions:
- the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principle amount outstanding on specified dates.				
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets the following conditions:
- the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principle amount outstanding on specified dates; and				
- the business model for managing the financial assets comprises both contractual cash flows collection and the selling of the
financial asset.				
By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the conditions of amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income's measurement conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss.
The Fund initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit and loss if:
- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as accounting
mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases;
- it is in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information about the Fund was
documented appropriately, so as the performance of the financial liability that was part of an Fund’s financial liabilities or
financial assets can be managed and evaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and
- it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows otherwise required by
the contract.
The initial designation of the financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit and loss is a one-time option on initial
classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.
Derecognition
Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the statement of
financial position.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to the
terms of a financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred in such
a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.
All the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of a financial asset:
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1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
- the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;
- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and				
- the Fund no longer controls the asset (i.e. no practical ability to make unilateral decision to sell the asset to a third party).
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in an investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.			
On derecognition of an investment in equity which was elected to be classified under fair value through other comprehensive
income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in an investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated surplus.				
Impairment
The Fund recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:				
- financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income;			
- loan commitments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss; and				
- financial guarantee contracts that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.				
Loss allowance is not recognised for:
- financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or
- equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.				
Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a financial instrument.
A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial instrument.				
The Fund uses the following approaches to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9:				
- the general approach;				
- the simplified approach;
- the purchased or originated credit impaired approach; and
- low credit risk operational simplification.				
General approach
Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments are credit impaired,
and if:
- the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund measures the loss
allowance of the financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses; and			
- there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Fund measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.				
Simplified approach
The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but instead requires the
recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times.
This approach is applicable to:
- trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions that are within the scope of AASB 15, that contain a
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1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
significant financing component; and			
- lease receivables.				
In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into consideration various data to
derive an expected credit loss, (i.e. diversity of its customer base, appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience etc).
Purchased or originated credit-impaired approach
For a financial asset that is considered to be credit impaired (not on acquisition or origination), the Fund measures any change
in its lifetime expected credit loss as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in
profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.				
Evidence of credit impairment includes:				
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;				
- a breach of contract (e.g. default or past due event);				
- where a lender has granted to the borrower a concession, due to borrower's financial difficulty, that the lender would not
otherwise consider;				
- where it is probable the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and			
- the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.
Low credit risk operational simplification approach
If a financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the initial reporting date, the Fund assumes that the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition and accordingly can continue to recognise a loss allowance of 12-month
expected credit loss.
In order to make such determination that the financial asset has low credit risk, the Fund applies its internal credit risk ratings
or other methodologies using a globally comparable definition of low credit risk.
A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if:				
- there is a low risk of default by the borrower;				
- the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and		
- adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term, may, but not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.				
A financial asset is not considered to carry low credit risk merely due to existence of collateral, or because a borrower has a
lower risk of default than the risk inherent in the financial assets, or lower than the credit risk of the jurisdiction in which it
operates.
Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements
At each reporting date, the Fund recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or loss in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.				
The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to that asset.
Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income. The amount in relation to change in credit risk is transferred from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.
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1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
For financial assets that are unrecognised (e.g. loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial guarantees), a provision for loss
allowance is created in the statement of financial position to recognise the loss allowance.
Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the Fund reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value
over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.					
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Fund estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Revenue
Rental and all other sources of income are accounted for on an accruals basis, such that revenue is recognised when it is earned.
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
Income Tax
The Fund is not liable for income tax. The ongoing Income Exempt Charity status is subject to the Fund meeting the terms of the Deed
of Settlement with the Commissioner of Taxation of the Commonwealth of Australia.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues and expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from
the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows are
presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financial activities, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.
Significant accounting judgments
The Committee evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. In the current financial year, all such estimates are deemed to be ‘normal’ estimations in the ordinary
course of business.
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2

2020

2019

$

$

196,138

1,672,956

2,499

16,637

- donation

-

5,950

- other income

1

4,547

198,638

1,700,090

33,212

-

33,212

-

792,143

792,143

2,060,000

2,060,000

(823,157)

(771,657)

Capital structure improvements - at cost

28,900,972

27,955,786

Less: Accumulated depreciation

(9,391,604)

(8,705,647)

20,746,211

20,538,482

21,538,354

21,330,625

4,267,455

4,169,674

(2,747,160)

(2,452,163)

1,520,295

1,717,511

97,226

97,226

(32,037)

(12,592)

65,189

84,634

1,585,484

1,802,145

23,123,838

23,132,770

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Included in operating surplus are the following items of operating
revenue:
- rent received
- interest received

3

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Prepayments and other assets

4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and buildings
Freehold land
Club rooms - at deemed cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total land and buildings
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment – at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Motor vehicles – at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total plant and equipment
Total Property, Plant & Equipment

(a)
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(a)

The motor vehicle is retained for the use of the General Manager of the Sub-Branch. The costs associated
are reimbursed to the Sub-Branch via a deduction in the General Manager's take home remuneration.

4(b) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movement in the carrying value for each class of property plant and equipment between the beginning and
end of the financial year is as follows:

Land

Buildings

Plant and
equipment

Motor
vehicles

Total

$

$

$

$

$

792,143 20,538,482

1,717,511

Year ended 31 December 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

-

945,186

97,781

-

1,042,967

Disposals - written down value

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation expense

-

(737,457)

(294,997)

(19,445) (1,051,899)

792,143

20,746,211

1,520,295

65,189 23,123,838

Balance at the end of the year

5

84,634 23,132,770

2020

2019

$

$

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The loan from Box Hill RSL Sub Branch Inc is non interest bearing and is unsecured. It has repayment terms of
$100,000 per annum. 		
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for
the year:		
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- Rent paid from the Sub-Branch to the Patriotic Fund

196,138

1,672,956

- Contribution towards Welfare Co-ordinators wages paid from
the Patriotic Fund to the Sub Branch		

36,000

60,000
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6

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020

2019
$

(a)

Reconciliation of Cash

$

$

$

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in
the statement of financial position as follows:

177,164

1,615,797

177,164

1,615,797

-

-

(962,392)

576,628

1,051,899

936,307

-

55,713

(33,212)

-

(Decrease)/Increase in trade creditors and accruals

(354,234)

-

Net cash from operating activities

(297,939)

1,568,648

Cash at bank
Represented by:
Patriotic Fund
Welfare Fund
(b)

Reconciliation of Net Cash used in Operating Activities to
Operating (Deficit) / Surplus
Operating (Deficit) / Surplus
Non Cash Flows in operating (Deficit) / Surplus:
Depreciation
Loss from sale of fixed assets
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade debtors and other receivables

Declaration by Members of the Committee
The Members of the Committee (‘the Committee’) of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Inc. declare that in the Committee's opinion:
(a) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they become due and
payable; and
(b) t he financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Act 2012.
Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Regulation 2013.

President: ........................................................
		John Haward

Treasurer: ........................................................
		Arthur Merryweather
Dated:

02/02/2021
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Independent Audit Report
To the Members of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch (Patriotic Fund)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Box Hill RSL
Sub-Branch (Patriotic Fund) (“the Fund”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the statement of surplus or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies, and the committee’s declaration.
In our opinion the financial report of the Fund is properly drawn up, including:
a.
giving a true and fair view of the Fund’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its
financial performance for the year ended; and
b.
complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and with the
Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibility under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the
Committee’s financial reporting responsibilities under the ACNC Act. As a result, the financial report may not be
suitable for another purpose.
Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Committee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to
meet the requirements of the ACNC Act. The Committee’s responsibility also includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Committee is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Committee either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Stannards Accountants and Advisors

James Dickson
Partner
Date: 2/02/2021
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Detailed Surplus or Deficit Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

196,138

1,672,956

2,499

16,637

Donation

-

5,950

Other income

1

4,547

198,638

1,700,090

25,756

38

1,637

-

1,051,899

936,307

Repairs and maintenance

44,456

71,404

Welfare expenditure

37,282

60,000

-

55,713

1,161,030

1,123,462

(962,392)

576,628

Income
Rent received
Interest received

Total
Expenses
Administration Expenses/Insurance
Consultancy and professional fees
Depreciation

Loss on disposal of assets
Total expenses
Net (Deficit) / Surplus
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BOX HILL RSL SUB-BRANCH AGENCY APPEALS FUND
(Agent for RSL VIC BRANCH General appeals Fund)

Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2020

Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note

2020

2019

$

$

19,369

64,751

Expenses

(29,959)

(61,034)

(Deficit) / Surplus Before Income Tax Expense

(10,590)

3,717

-

-

(10,590)

3,717

-

-

(10,590)

3,717

Total Current Assets

9,726
9,726

24,159
24,159

Total Assets

9,726

24,159

Total Current Liabilities

676
676

4,519
4,519

Total Liabilities

676

4,519

9,050

19,640

9,050
9,050

19,640
19,640

Revenue

Income tax expense
(Deficit) / Surplus After Income Tax Expense
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
the members

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2020

Note
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents

2

Current Liabilities
Trade payables & other liabilities

Net Assets
Equity
Retained surplus
Total Equity

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Retained surplus

Total

$

$

15,923

15,923

3,717

3,717

19,640

19,640

(10,590)

(10,590)

9,050

9,050

2020

2019

$

$

Cash receipts from appeals and donations

19,360

64,731

Cash payments in the provision of welfare

(33,802)

(62,675)

9

20

(14,433)

2,076

(14,433)

2,076

24,159

22,083

9,726

24,159

Balance at 1 January 2019
Surplus attributable to members
Balance at 31 December 2019
Deficit incurred by members
Balance at 31 December 2020

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Interest received
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities

2

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash at beginning of financial year
Cash at end of financial year
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This special purpose financial report has been prepared for distribution to the members of the Sub- Branch to fulfil the Association’s
financial reporting requirements under the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits
Commission Act 2012. The accounting policies used in the preparation of this report, as described below, are consistent with the
financial reporting requirements of the Act, and are, in the opinion of the committee, appropriate to meet the needs of members.
The requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations, and other professional reporting requirements, do
not have mandatory applicability to the Fund, except to the extent required by the Act, because it is not a “reporting entity”.
This financial report related to the Box Hill RSL Agency Appeals Fund which was created under Branch Bylaw 7A to facilitate the
administration and management of designated appeal funds received by Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch as agent for the Returned & Services
League of Australian (Victorian Branch) (ANZAC House). This was undertaken in order to preserve the Designated Gift Recipient status
of the fund represented by the Agency Fund.
The bylaw specifies that if the funds are not spent within one year of the initial receipt, they must be remitted back to the RSL General
Appeals Fund administrated by ANZAC House.					
Basis of Accounting
The report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the following applicable Australian Accounting Standards and
Accounting Interpretations:
AASB 107: Statement of Cash Flows
AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
AASB 110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date;
AASB 1048: Interpretation of Standards; and
AASB 1054: Australian Additional Disclosures
No other Accounting Standards, Accounting Interpretations or other authoritive pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board have been applied.
Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected
non-current assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.
The following is a summary of the material policies adopted by the fund in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.					
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in current
liabilities on the statement of financial position.
Revenue
Rental and all other sources of income are accounted for on an accruals basis, such that revenue is recognised when it is earned.
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
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Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020 (cont’d)
1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Income Tax
The Fund is not liable for income tax. The ongoing Income Exempt Charity status is subject to the Fund meeting the terms of the Deed
of Settlement with the Commissioner of Taxation of the Commonwealth of Australia.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues and expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from
the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows are
presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financial activities, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.
Comparative Figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the
current financial year.
Significant accounting judgments
The Committee evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. In the current financial year, all such estimates are deemed to be ‘normal’ estimations in the ordinary
course of business.

2

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of Cash

2020

2019

$

$

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in
the statement of financial position as follows:			
Cash at bank

(b)

9,726

24,159

Reconciliation of Net Cash used in Operating Activities to Operating (Deficit) / Surplus
Operating (Deficit) / Surplus

(10,590)

3,717

(3,843)

(1,641)

(14,433)

2,076

Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities:
(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors and accruals
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities
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REPORTS
Declaration by Members of the Committee
The Members of the Committee (‘the Committee’) of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch Inc. declare that in the Committee's opinion:		
(a) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they become
due and payable; and				
(b) t he financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Act
2012.				
Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Regulation 2013.			

President: ........................................................
		John Haward

Treasurer: ........................................................
		Arthur Merryweather
Dated:

02/02/2021
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Independent Audit Report
To the Members of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch (Agency Appeals Fund)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Box Hill RSL
Sub-Branch (Agency Appeals Fund) (“the Fund”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies, and the committee’s declaration.
In our opinion the financial report of the Fund is properly drawn up, including:
a.
giving a true and fair view of the Fund’s financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its
financial performance for the year ended; and
b.
complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibility under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the
Committee’s financial reporting responsibilities of the Returned & Services League of Australian (Victorian
Branch). As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.
Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report
The Committee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to
meet the requirements of the Returned & Services League of Australian (Victorian Branch). The Committee’s
responsibility also includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Committee is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Committee either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
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REPORTS
Independent Audit Report
To the Members of Box Hill RSL Sub-Branch (Agency Appeals Fund)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Stannards Accountants and Advisors

James Dickson
Partner
Date: 2/02/2021
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Detailed Surplus or Deficit Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020

2019

$

$

Income
ANZAC Day Appeal

6,300

22,700

Donations

4,810

16,231

9

20

8,250

25,800

19,369

64,751

393

-

9,965

9,395

Funeral Expenses

-

1,200

Gardening service

11,216

15,547

-

7,982

204

216

6,799

26,694

-

-

1,382

-

29,959

61,034

(10,590)

3,717

Interest
Poppy Day Appeal
Total
Expenses
Administration expenses
Death notices

Meals to service members
Medical equipment and doctors fees
Taxi services
Wages & salaries
Other welfare services
Total Expenses
Net (Deficit) / Surplus
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EBITDAR

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Profit

$492,666

$232,924

$101,721

$403,848

$13,478

$476,859

$718,179

EBITDAR

$1,732,666

$1,472,924

$1,341,721

$1,643,848

$1,641,913

$2,263,957

$3,037,541

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Profit

$643,305

$573,293

$821,412

$624,651

$428,852

$427,804

-$9,620

EBITDAR

$2,913,160

$2,782,743

$3,158,324

$3,110,740

$2,925,300

$2,628,939

$671,673

		

NOTE - EBITDAR represents Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rent

		EBITDA offers a clearer reflection of operations by stripping out expenses that can obscure how the
company is really performing.
		Interest and rent are ignored as they are a function of the financing model and not operational performance
		Taxes are left out because they can vary widely depending on past performance leading to variations that
can distort net income
		Depreciation and amortization are removed due to the arbitrary and subjective judgments that can go
into the calculation , such as useful lives, residual values and various depreciation methods
$3,500,000

$3,000,000

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000

$-

2007 2008 2009
NB

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

- Donations to the Patriotic Fund have been added back to the profit figure in the years they were recorded
- 'Loan forgiven after related income tax expense' has not been included from 2002.
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Percentage Staff Costs to Revenue

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Revenue

$4,683,011

$5,129,451

$5,630,178

$6,232,423

$6,435,966

$8,147,386

$10,757,227

Adjusted Revenue

$4,506,355

$4,998,594

$5,559,520

$6,052,119

$6,192,983

$7,895,115

$10,489,792

Total Staff Costs

$1,391,221

$1,748,498

$2,059,784

$2,237,875

$2,316,033

$2,394,328

$2,622,921

% Staff Costs to
Revenue

30.9%

35.0%

37.4%

37.0%

37.4%

30.3%

25.0%

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Revenue

$11,029,374

$11,374,092 $12,405,608

$12,873,016

$13,120,321

$12,962,622

4,369,050

Adjusted Revenue

$10,748,342

$11,084,713

$12,109,128

$12,549,585

$12,750,366

$12,625,013

4 ,095,985

Total Staff Costs

$2,669,455

$2,944,056

$3,113,686

$3,306,450

$3,430,960

$3,597,885

1 ,568,889

% Staff Costs to
Revenue

24.8%

26.6%

25.7%

26.3%

26.9%

28.5%

38.3%

40.0%

35.0%

30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

2007 2008 2009
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Community Benefit Statement

An Explanation

Particulars

The largest amount in this report is “Subsidised Meals”, this

4th/19th Prince of Wales Light Horse Reg

sizable amount is essentially the cost of the Free Meal Vouchers

AATTV Association

we provide to our members on their birthdays, combined with

Anglo Boer War Study Group

the small discount built into the cost of providing a senior’s
meal, which the Sub-Branch absorbs.

Balwyn War Widows
Boer War Association

Given the situation in 2020 it is not surprising that the second

Box Hill Legacy Widows

highest cost was the Box Hill RSL Newsletter, which keeps our

Box Hill Naval Associatiom

members updated with all the latest club news.

Nashettes

Some of the other listed amounts are for:

Navy League

-Funding to various groups
-Taxi vouchers for those members who are unable to drive or
catch public transport
-Gardening for members who for age or health reasons are no
longer able to do their own gardens.

NSAA
RAAFA
TPI Association
VVAA Box Hill Association
Community Advocacy Alliance
OMNI Senior Mens Discussion

-Room Hire which is where we provide the use of rooms free of

Prostate Cancer Support Group

charge to in-house groups and various Ex-Military groups.

Whitehorse Day Club

-and Tributes to members who have passed.
Should you have any questions relating to any item on this
statement you can contact our Treasurer, Arthur Merryweather
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BOX HILL RSL SUB-BRANCH

Community Benefit Statement (cont’d)
305 Army Cadets

Centenary of Box Hill RSL

$5,183
$1,000

AATTV Vic

$1,000

TPI Eastern Suburbs

Angling Section

$2,000

ANZAC Day Dawn Service

$3,567

Transport for veterans
and family-Taxi Vouchers

Billards & Snooker
Section

$1,000

Vietnam Veterans

$4,000

Bowls Section

$1,000

Whitehorse Day Club

$1,000

Box Hill RSL Womens
Auxiliary

$1,000

TOTAL

Childrens Christmas
Party-Deposit

$1,000

Agency to RSL Vic Branch

Darts Section

$1,000

Funeral Expenses/Wakes

$538

Gardening Services for
veterans and family

$1,420

Death Notices

$3,978

Haircuts for veterans and
others-male and female

$2,985

Lord Somers Camp and
Power House

$576

Lakes Entrance RSL Sub
Branch

$10,000

Legacy Widows

$1,000

Medical Aids/Doctors

$1,417

Newsletter ExpensesScuttlebutt

$22,625

NSAA-Whitehorse Sub
Branch

$1,000

Remembrance Day
Ceremony and wreaths
Room Hire (foregone
Income)

$809
$9,323

Subsidised Meals

$85,169

Swimming Section

$1,000

Tai Chi Exercise Classes

74

$547

$450

Trips

$4,174
$182

$169,943

Death Notices

$9,964

Gardening Service

$11,215

Medical Expenses

$203

Miscellaneous Welfare
Costs

$1,384

Transport for veterans
and family-Taxi Vouchers

$6,799

TOTAL

$29,565

Volunteer Hours 9632
@ $20 per hour

192,640

Grand Total

$392,148
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